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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET
(“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“Company”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having
made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company
Announcements” page of the GEM website at
http.//www.hkgem.com for a minimum period of seven days
from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website
at http://www.hklifesciences.com.

EBBMERZAARA R (TBFT]) AIZAR (A
B zBe

RIZEAREEN - DRMLEEMEBRRZF TN
ARBEREREARNATREM—BELEHND
5o ARRENATETHRRENZZIQANE
HER YEREBEBHAFNZRRSEHERE
RIE o B AR BV S E B K 2 A4S & RN A1 AR
BREAGEXRHMERRES -

HRAIRER LT ARRENEEER - EAIXER
BEENBSFIHEERNEIREENESEZIRA
HHSRBER  FARELIRELAEREEN
BHEEERBENTS -

TERX G REEFTER AR KRBT REFE
ABBTRE - HHEES L BT RRIT
fa] B8 - A BFHER T LT 5L R A48 &5 2 AE 2 (1]
BB 10 A2 1T 2E A B IR 1o B A% 5 2 T 5 B2 A 1]
REAEEARIT -

Az EXTSBRRBEPTEIRRE 5 £ AR
([BIZR LEMAA) MTI#E  EEEHERZE
F BRI ERER NG ([KRF]) 2 EH -
ARAIEEF([EFE]) BB RS EFH R R
E 5 A E TR E(E - KEFHEIEL — IS EL
LR - BLEIRARES - AR EBER
HEEEZ T ELEEER TR - W ERTHGF
7 THEERIEEMER UKL E
SCE P E (SR E L ARG

BFIZEHBE: AREHZ L —ELHTF
#H R Al # Ik 4 ibhtto://www.hkgem.com Z
[ =¥~ d & ] ARKXRDAEH B

htto.//www. hklifesciences.com Al °



CONTENTS

B &%

WN=00hR~DN

37
39

42
43
44
45
47

Corporate Information

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Profile of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five-Year Financial Summary

NEIER

FEWE
EIRE TR RO
EZREBREEEBEN
EEARE
EEgWE

18 M A% B R
FEB=EkEMEE
et

mE Bk E
kR E
REEREEHER
mEBeRER
IRE B SRR
TFEMBRE



,4;»“? -

Corporate Information

DNEEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (Vice Chairman)

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Hon Pong

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Cai Da

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Lam Tze Chung

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Lu Zhigiang

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Lu Zhigiang
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Yun Hing
Mr. Gui Qiangfang
Mr. Hung Yat Ming

BExg

HITES

EHERE (BITE)
NS AT
BRI (TR AR
REFE
ERIREE

FHITES
MRL L (EE)

BYFHITES
FEHERE
PRSI A
I RAE
HEREE

DEME
WFrhsEE

ERFE
ERRtE

EERR
BRIt E
ENERELE

BEREEY

F M 5 (/)
PR B 5
St
HEBEE

FMZES
oy P L XETD)
EHIRILE
PR B 4
LV
HEBEE

REZES
TR (E)
PR B 4
LV
HEBEE

2 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2014



Corporate Information

NEEF

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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To Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | hereby
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group is principally
engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses; (ii)
trading business; and (i) money lending business. As a result of
the disposal of the entire registered capital of Taiyuan City
Woufuling Company Limited* (“Taiyuan WFL") and Qinghai Fuli
Fenghuangshan Cemetery Company Limited* (“Qinghai FL") in
October 2013, the Group discontinued all its funeral and related
businesses and their results were therefore classified as
discontinued operations.

ANTI-AGING AND STEM CELL
TECHNOLOGY BUSINESSES

The Group has successfully completed the acquisition of 51% of
equity interests of 159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.)
Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “159 Group”) in 2012.
After completion of acquisition, the Board has been
concentrating our attention in the anti-aging and stem cell
technology businesses. 159 Group has been running an anti-
aging center and a stem cell processing center in Hong Kong
and providing anti-aging healthcare service including physical
examination, aging testing protocol, implementation of anti-
aging application with stem cell technology and stem cell
storage.

During the year under review, 159 Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$10,255,000 (2013: HK$1,850,000) and loss of
approximately HK$18,814,000 (2013: HK$13,970,000). The loss
was incurred mainly from the staff costs and rental expenses.

The Group had carried on the annual impairment assessment on
the carrying amount of goodwill in relation to the acquisition of
159 Group and recognized an impairment loss of
HK$127,830,000 representing the carrying amount of the
goodwill excess its recoverable amount. It was mainly due to
the number of customers and turnover during the reporting
years did not reach the expected target projection.

*  For identification purpose only
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Chairman’s Statement
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Furthermore, the Group has entered into certain distribution
agreements to acquire the exclusive right to import, market,
distribute and sell the life sciences and biomedical products in
Hong Kong and Macau through BALS platform. BALS mission is
to provide the best healthcare solutions to medical professionals
based on latest development of life sciences and biomedical
technology. During the year under review, BALS recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$1,898,000.

With improved living standards and the aging population, people
become more health conscious and there will increase the
demand for the anti-aging application and related service. The
Board believe that anti-aging and stem cell technologies
businesses would provide good opportunities for the
development of future business of the Group, broaden its
revenue base and have potential to make a reasonable
contribution to the Group in future. The Group will continue to
explore various approaches to promote and publicize the anti-
aging application and related service to encourage customers to
use our products and services.

TRADING BUSINESS

The turnover of trading business for the year amounted to
approximately HK$663,036,000 (2013: HK$20,156,000). The
significant growth in turnover was mainly due to the Group
increased its sales and product types including electronic
components, cotton yarn and metals for the year. The Group will
continue to expand and diversify our trading products in order to
increase its revenue stream and improve the financial
performance.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

During the year under review, the Group formally commenced
its money lending business through Asia Honest Finance
Limited, which holds a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong). As at 31
March 2014, the Group had the loan receivables of
approximately HK$95,088,000 and the loan interests during the
year were approximately HK$4,512,000. In view of significant
demand in the market, the Group intends to maintain the loan
portfolio with a prudent manner in order to generate a healthy
cash flow and steady returns.

F3R 2014
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DISPOSAL OF FUNERAL AND RELATED
BUSINESSES

The funeral and related businesses had recorded loss making
position in the past few years, the businesses had been facing
the challenges of the high inflation and high operating costs
including the increase in cost of labour, raw materials, as well as
repair and maintenance. However, the revenue generated from
the cemetery companies was subject to the cyclical nature of
the market and the business operation was mostly relying on
the local management teams. In view of the uncertain operating
environment, the Board decided to dispose of Taiyuan WFL and
Qinghai FL.

The disposal was completed on 15 October 2013. The loss of
discontinued operations for the year was approximately
HK$52,121,000 (2013: HK$1,314,000) and loss attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$28,584,000
(2013: HK$647,000).

HOTEL PROJECT

On 4 April 2014, Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel Company
Limited* (“Wuli Tianxi") entered into (i) a lease agreement with
Wuyuan County Yuhe Property Development Company Limited*
("Yuhe"), pursuant to which Wuli Tianxi agreed to lease the
property from Yuhe. The property is located in Jiangxi Province,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"), which measures
approximately 12,153.58 m? in gross floor area, consisting of a
hotel building and 10 blocks of terrace villas; and (ii) a
management agreement with Shenzhen Ruiyue Hotel
Management Company Limited* (“Ruiyue”), pursuant to which
Ruiyue agreed to provide hotel management service to Wuli
Tianxi.

Wuli Tianxi is a special purpose subsidiary established by the
Group for operating the hotel business. Up to the date of this
report, Wuli Tianxi has not commenced business operation and
the Directors anticipates the hotel's official operation shall be
ready no later than end of 2014. The Directors believe that the
hotel project would provide good opportunities for the
development of future business of the Group, broaden its
revenue base and have potential to increase the value of the
Company and enhance the shareholders’ return.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the year under review, the Company had placed an
aggregate of 658,380,000 ordinary shares and the net proceeds
from the placing were approximately HK$102 million. The
proceeds had been used for the general working capital of the
Group and further investment in the anti-aging and stem cell
technology and related businesses. The Board was considered
that the placing provided an opportunity for the Company to
strengthen its capital base and enhance the liquidity position for
the business developments.

6 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

HERZEREERXE

RELRABEENBEBFESER  YAHS
BRESEERA(BEST - JHE - #E R
REMAR ETH) P K kE - AT - EE QR
EEWaEmSERTERTE  XHLERK
EE FAKEAREIZE - EREERITTH
B BEERREETHERNRTLRERE LT G
R o

FESEHEIR - Z—=F+A+HEHZK L
IFEBFRZEE52,121,0008 T(ZE—=
F :1,314,000870) * MARBHEE AL EIE
#728,684,000/87t( — & — =4 : 647,000/%87T) °

SEIEEE

R-ZE—NFEMNANE  BREEBEXREH/ES
RAR([EEXE] () EERGEMNEEERA
RI([BMDIIHEAR  Bitt ZEEXERE
MWMBEXEE - ZEEMNNPEAR KR
([E])TRE  BEEBELHAE12,153.68F 7
Ko B —IEEE R R 0@ EBERIZFAER ¢ & ()
BRI TIRIEBEEEERAA([HR])IVE
BAR Eit - WREEREREREREELEE
IR RARTE o

EERXER/ASERIZERENHMEBAR  §
EREEEXR - BEAREAY  ZEXEM
AERFEBEE =Ry BETR TN
FEATEHEAFRE - EFRE BERABS
BRAEEZRREBIRI R BBARAZR -
YAERSANBEEREARROAFES -

EETE

REBEFE  ANQ R EE 4 658,380,000 % &
W BLE 2 ATS RIEFE A A 102,000,000 7%
T TSREEREAEEZ —REEBEES N
DiE— S RERNEE L BB LAEE
HeoBEERA BEAARNARIRERME - 1L
BAHEEARERE R BEBERINGREBESAR

Annual Report 2014



Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2014/2015, the Group will continue to focus
on the anti-aging and stem cell businesses. In this regard, the
Board will constantly keep reviewing the Group's strategies and
operations with a view to improve the business performance.
We will continue to search and identify other products and
service to our customers as well as explore other investment
opportunities with growth potential to expand and diversify our
business portfolios.

APPRECIATIONS

| would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to all our shareholders, customers, business partners
who have been offering their support, confidence and
encouragement to us. Not to mention the great devotion,
diligence and effort of the management and the members of
staff who tirelessly committed themselves in striving for
improvements of the Group. With all these supports remain, we
shall continue to explore means to improve the Group’s
performance and provide investment returns to the investors.

Lam Kuo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing operations

The turnover of anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses
for the year amounted to approximately HK$12,343,000 (2013:
HK$18,996,000) and recorded a segmental loss of approximately
HK$29,883,000 (2013: HK$18,938,000) mainly from the
administrative and other operating expenses.

159 Anti-Aging Center

The Group has successfully completed the acquisition of 51% of
equity interests of 159 Group in September 2012, 159 Group
was granted a licence for the user right of stem cell technology.
Application has been submitted to State Intellectual Property
Office of the PRC for patent of the stem cell technology but has
not yet been approved.

During the year under review, 159 Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$10,255,000 (2013: HK$1,850,000) and loss of
approximately HK$18,814,000 (2013: HK$13,970,000). The loss
attributable to the Group for the year was approximately
HK$9,595,000 (2013: HK$7,125,000). The loss was incurred
mainly from the staff costs and rental expenses.

The Group had carried on the annual impairment assessment on
the carrying amount of goodwill in relation to the acquisition of
159 Group and recognized an impairment loss of
HK$127,830,000 representing the carrying amount of the
goodwill excess its recoverable amount. It was mainly due to
the number of customers and turnover during the reporting
years did not reach the expected target projection.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement in relation to the
acquisition of 159 Group, for the aggregated consideration of
HK$195 million (the "Consideration”), of which (i) HK$40.8
million by means 136,000,000 consideration shares will be
subject to the Consideration adjustments depending on whether
the earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (the "EBITDA") can meet the target EBITDA (the
“Target EBITDA") in the respective guaranteed period. The
Target EBITDA for guaranteed period A for the period ended 31
December 2013 (the “Guaranteed Period A") and guaranteed
period B for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2014 (the “"Guaranteed Period B") is HK$15,300,000 and
HK$25,500,000 respectively; and (ii) HK$113,333,333
Consideration Shares will be issued and allotted upon either the
condition that the actual accumulative EBITDA achieved for
Guaranteed Period A and Guaranteed Period B being not less
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than HK$25,500,000 or the condition that the patent is obtained
and the user right of the stem cell technology granted remains
fully effective. Details of the acquisition of 159 Group were
disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 4 September
2012, 6 September 2012, 11 September 2012 and 18
September 2012.

During the year under review, the EBITDA was less than the
Target EBITDA for the Guaranteed Period A, the vendor and/or
the guarantor had elected to increase the Target EBITDA for the
Guaranteed Period B, in order that the Company will not deduct
from Consideration A the consideration shares equivalent to the
shortfall for the Guaranteed Period A.

The anti-aging application with the stem cell technology is a
fairly new service, the future of this business will depend on the
success in achieving the market acceptance and customers’
confidence for our products and services. The Group has
entered into certain agency agreements with agents, pursuant
to which the agents will promote and sell the Group's products
and service in the PRC. The Board anticipates it will make help
to explore prospective customers in PRC. The Group will
continue to explore various approaches to promote and publicize
the anti-aging application and related service to encourage
customers to use our products and services.

Biomedical and Life Sciences (“BALS”)

The Group has entered into certain distribution agreements to
acquire the exclusive right to import, market, distribute and sell
the life sciences and biomedical products in Hong Kong and
Macau. BALS has commenced its business operation during the
year. During the year under review, BALS recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$1,898,000.

Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui (“Shenzhen SLH”)

The Group had acquired the entire interests of Shenzhen Sheng
Li Hui Biotechnology Company Limited* at a total consideration
of RMB3,500,000 in November 2013, Shenzhen SLH is
principally engaged in the provision of anti-aging and beauty
service. During the year under review, the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$550,000 and loss for the year of
approximately HK$1,806,000. The Group has always been
interested in diversifying the revenue stream and introducing the
anti-aging and stem cell products and service to new customers,
the acquisition provided opportunities to increase customer base
and create cross-sell opportunity for the Group.
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Sale of Healthcare Products
During the year under review, the Group did not record turnover
from sale of healthcare products (2013: HK$17,146,000).

The turnover of trading business for the year amounted to
approximately HK$663,036,000 (2013: HK$20,156,000). The
significant growth in turnover was mainly due to the Group
increased its sales and product types including electronic
components, cotton yarn and metals for the year. The segment
loss was approximately HK$14,967,000 (2013: HK3,668,000)
mainly from the rental expenses and staff costs. The Group will
continue to expand and diversify our trading products in order to
increase its revenue stream and improve the financial
performance.

During the year under review, the Group formally commenced
its money lending business through Asia Honest Finance
Limited, which holds a money lenders licence under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163, Laws of Hong Kong). As at 31
March 2014, the loan receivables and interest receivables were
approximately HK$95,088,000 and HK$1,019,000 respectively.
During the year under review, the revenue from loan interests
were approximately HK$4,512,000. The average interest rate
charged by the Group was approximately 16.60% per annum.
Customers included individual and corporations providing
secured and unsecured loans, the credit terms of outstanding
loans granted by the Group to the customers ranged from six
months to one years.

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had loan receivables of
approximately HK$25,000,000 (2013: HK$57,329,000) and the
interest income generated from loan receivables was
approximately HK$5,805,000 (2013: HK$7,045,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$69,588,000 (2013:
HK$62,876,000). During the year under review, the Company
recorded a realized gain on disposal of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$8,527,000 (2013:
HK$590,000). Furthermore, the Company recorded an unrealized
gain approximately HK$23,140,000 (2013: HK$7,319,000)
representing the fair value change on held-for-trading
investments. The Board will continue to monitor the market
conditions and its performance.
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Discontinued Operations

As a result of the disposal of Taiyuan WFL and Qinghai FL, the
Group discontinued all its funeral and related businesses and
their results were therefore classified as discontinued
operations. During the year under review, the turnover of the
funeral and related businesses was approximately
HK$26,896,000 (2013: HK$46,961,000). The loss for the year
was approximately HK$52,121,000 (2013: HK$1,314,000) and
loss attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$28,584,000 (2013: HK$647,000). The loss for the year was
mainly from the impairment loss of goodwill and property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$8,888,000 and
HK$50,253,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
from the continuing operations of approximately
HK$679,891,000 (2013: HK$39,152,000). The increase in
turnover was mainly derived from the trading business.

The administrative and other operating expenses for the year
from the continuing operations to approximately HK$74,244,000
(2013: HK$49,123,000), which were included a non-cash
expenses of HK$2,539,000 (2013: HK$5,671,000) relating to the
share-based payments to certain consultants of the Company.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a significant
increase in loss as compared to the last year. The loss was
mainly attributable to (i) the disposal of discontinued operation in
relation to the funeral and related businesses of approximately
HK$52 million and (ii) impairment loss of goodwill for the
acquisition of 159 Group in September 2012 and Shenzhen SLH
in November 2013 of approximately HK$128 million and HK$4
million respectively.

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
was approximately HK$152,201,000 (2013: HK$35,614,000) and
the loss per share was 4.14 HK cents (2013: 1.19 HK cents).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had net current assets
approximately HK$218,327,000 (2013: HK$207,758,000) and the
cash and bank balances was approximately HK$47,718,000
(2013: HK$29,157,000). The Group had no outstanding interest-
bearing borrowings from the continuing operations (2013: Nil).
The gearing ratio of the Group, being the ratio of total liabilities
to total assets, was approximately 21.5% (2013: 32.9%).
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER
GENERAL MANDATE

On 19 August 2013, the Company and Kingston Securities
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into the placing
agreement, pursuant to which the Company had conditionally
agreed to place, through the Placing Agent on a best effort
basis, an aggregate of 658,380,000 new ordinary shares at a
price of HK$0.16 per placing share (the “Placing”), to not fewer
than six placees. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$102,600,000 from the Placing had been used for the general
working capital of the Group and further investment in the anti-
aging and stem cell technology and related businesses. The
maximum net proceeds raised per share upon the completion of
the Placing were approximately HK$0.156 per share. All
conditions set out in the placing agreement had been fulfilled
and the Placing was completed on 29 August 2013. Details of
the Placing were disclosed in the Company’s announcements
dated 19 August 2013 and 29 August 2013.

MATERIAL EVENTS

Major Transaction — Disposal of Qinghai FL and
Taiyuan WFL

On 24 July 2013, the Group entered into the disposal agreement
with the purchaser and the guarantor of the purchaser to
dispose of the entire interest in Qinghai FL and Taiyuan WFL.
The disposal constituted a major transaction and was duly
passed by the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the extraordinary general meeting dated 4
October 2013. All conditions precedent set out in the disposal
agreement had been fulfilled and the disposal was completed
on 15 October 2013. Details of the disposal of Qinghai FL and
Taiyuan WFL were disclosed in the Company's circular dated 17
September 2013.

Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of Gold Arch
Group Limited (the “GAGL")

On 28 March 2013, the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement with Mr. Yang Guofeng (“Mr. Yang”), pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to purchase and Mr.
Yang conditionally agreed to the entire issued share capital of
GAGL and all amounts which GAGL owes to Mr. Yang at a total
consideration of HK$62,000,000 from the internal resources of
the Company. GAGL has been granted exclusive licences on the
five patents. The Company intends to commercialise the five
patents with a view to expand the Group's existing business in
Hong Kong and the PRC. All conditions precedent set out in the
acquisition agreement had been fulfilled and the acquisition was
completed on 29 October 2013. Details of the acquisition of
GAGL were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
28 March 2013 and 29 October 2013.
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Discloseable Transaction — Acquisition of a property
in Shenzhen

On 27 May 2013, Shenzhen Bio Technology Trading Company
Limited* (as the purchaser), Shenzhen Shunxing Logistics
Company Limited* (as the vendor) and Mr. Ji Hong and
Shenzhen Manchen Real Estate Development Company
Limited* (as the guarantors) entered into an acquisition
agreement in relation to the acquisition of a property in
Shenzhen. The consideration shall be RMB33,600,000 shall be
satisfied by the purchaser in the following manner: (i)
RMB23,520,000 in cash as refundable deposit has been paid
within 7 days from the date of execution of the acquisition
agreement; (i) RMB6,720,000 will be paid in cash within 3 days
from the date of passing of the completion inspection by the
relevant authorities and (iii) the balance will be paid in cash
within 3 days from the date of the issue of the relevant land and
building title certificates* to the purchaser. The Company
intends that the property be used as the purchaser’s office for
its operation in the PRC. Up to the date of this report, the
acquisition has still not yet been completed. Details of the
acquisition of a property in Shenzhen were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 27 May 2013.

OTHER TRANSACTION

Memorandum of Understanding (the “MoU")

On 6 September 2013, the Company entered into MoU with
Jiangsu Tairui Shengnuo Biomedical Technology Company
Limited* (“Shengnuo”), which is principally engaged in
research, development, transfer and technical consultation
service, etc. on biomedicine and medical appliances. Pursuant to
the MoU, the Company’s nominee and Shengnuo would
establish a joint venture company (“JV") and would continue to
negotiate with a view to finalize a joint venture agreement. As at
31 March 2014, the MoU had expired and no any definitive
agreement had been signed, therefore, the transaction
contemplated under the MoU did not proceed. Details of the
MoU were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6
September 2013.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the
exposure in exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations
in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi exchange rate. The Directors
considers that the impact of foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is minimal. During the year under review, the Group did
not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

CHARGE OF GROUP ASSETS
As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any material
charge on assets (2013: Nil).
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed a total of 136 (2013:
156) full-time employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. During the
year under review, the total remuneration to employees,
including Directors’ emoluments and retirement benefits
amounted to approximately HK$32,346,000 (2013:
HK$24,031,000). The Group remunerates its employees based
on their performance, qualification, experience and the prevailing
industry practice.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2014, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

LITIGATION

On 14 March 2014, LST Operating Limited as the defendant and
as the tenant, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, received an amended writ of summons in the High
Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Based
on the statement of claims, the plaintiff as the landlord claimed
against the defendant for the outstanding rent, service charges,
rates, interest, costs and damages to be assessed. The
defendant has filed a defence on 23 May 2014 which denied
certain claims made by the plaintiff. Up to the date of this report,
the vacant possession of the suit premises was delivered to the
landlord and the parties are still in the settlement negotiations in
order to resolve the disputes. The Directors assessed that the
litigation would have no material impact to the financial position
of the Company and the liability to the Company is remote.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 April 2014, Wuli Tianxi entered into (i) the lease agreement
with Yuhe, pursuant to which Wuli Tianxi agreed to lease the
property from Yuhe upon the terms and conditions set out in the
lease agreement. The property is located in Jiangxi Province,
PRC, which measures approximately 12,1563.58 m? in gross floor
area, consisting of a hotel building and 10 blocks of terrace villas;
and (i) the management agreement with Ruiyue, pursuant to
which Ruiyue agreed to provide hotel management service to
Wouli Tianxi upon the terms and conditions set out in the
management agreement. Wuli Tianxi employed Ruiyue as the
sole manager in charge of managing the hotel during the
effective period of the management agreement. Up to the date
of this report, Wuli Tianxi has not commenced business
operation. Details of the lease agreement and management
agreement were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 4 April 2014.
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DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jiang Hongqing (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 46, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. Mr. Jiang holds a Ph.D. in Engineering majoring
in Architectural Design and Theory from South China University
of Technology. He also holds a Master of Engineering Degree
majoring in Landscape Architecture Design and a Bachelor of
Engineering Degree majoring in Urban Planning from Chongging
Institute of Architecture and Engineering. Mr. Jiang had also
been studied in Ecole d'Architecture Paris-la-Seine in Paris,
France. He is a Professorate Senior Urban Planner and a
Certified Planner of the People’s Republic of China. In addition,
Mr. Jiang was also the member of City Ecological Planning and
Construction Academic Committee* of the Urban Planning
Society of China and also was a consultant of Urban Planning
Construction and Protection of Ancient City of Lijiang, Yunnan
Province*. He has extensive experience in planning design,
architectural design, landscape architecture design, planning
management and project planning. Mr. Jiang was an executive
director of Birmingham International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2309) from 30 August 2011 to 20 January 2012.

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (“Mr. Lin”), aged 64, was appointed as
an executive Director and a vice chairman of the Board on 23
September 2013. Mr. Lin has over 30 years healthcare
management experience. He is currently the president of
Shanghai Health Kind Hospital Management Company Limited*
and Wuxi New District Feng Huang Hospital Company Limited*
respectively.

Mr. Lu Zhigiang (“Mr. Lu”), aged 39, was appointed as an
executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 30 September 2011. Mr. Lu is also the compliance
officer, the authorized representative and the directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Central State University of the
United States of America and a Bachelor Degree in Engineering
and a Bachelor Degree in Industry from Nanchang Hangkong
University. Mr. Lu used to learning a Master of Science Degree
from the International Purchasing & Supply Chain Management
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management. He is the leadership
development chairperson of Lions Club in Shenzhen. Mr. Lu has
many years experience in management and investment. He was
the managing director of Chin Mining Investment Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Chu Hon Pong (“Mr. Chu”), aged 64, joined the Company
as an executive Director on 9 October 2007 and was appointed
as the vice-chairman of the Board on 21 January 2008. Mr. Chu
subsequently re-designated as an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board on 29 December 2008. He has resigned
as the chairman of the Board but remains as an executive
Director on 30 November 2012. Mr. Chu holds a Master Degree
in Business Administration from Stevens Institute of Technology
in New Jersey, the United States of America. He is the chairman
of American Dream Parks & Entertainment Group. His
businesses covered land and property development and trade of
petroleum in the PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan. Mr. Chu has over
30 years' experience in direct investment, international trade,
manufacturing, business and industrial management in the PRC,
Hong Kong, Taiwan, Vietnam and the United States of America.
He has been the personal assistant to Mr. Robert Miller, the
chairtman of Search Investment Holdings Limited and was
designated as chief executive officer and chairman to a listed
company and certain corporations in the PRC and Hong Kong. In
the early 80’s, Mr. Chu was appointed as the factory manager in
a joint venture steel factory, namely Sino Master Steel Company
Limited, in Shenzhen, the PRC. In the 90's, he was the founder
of the duty free industry in Vietnam. Mr. Chu was an
independent non-executive director of Frontier Services Group
Limited (formerly known as DVN (Holdings) Limited, stock code:
500) from 10 July 2000 to 8 April 2014.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau (“Mr. Chui”), aged 47, was appointed as
a non-executive Director on 19 October 2009 and subsequently
re-designated as an executive Director on 30 November 2009.
Mr. Chui is also a member of the remuneration committee, the
authorized representative, the agent for the service of process
in Hong Kong and the directors of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 15 years’' experience in accounting and
auditing fields including over 10 years’ experience in other listed
companies. Mr. Chui is an executive director of China Energy
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 228) and an
independent non-executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148).

Mr. Cai Da (“Mr. Cai”), aged 39, was appointed as an executive
Director on 30 September 2011. Mr. Cai holds a Civil
Engineering Degree from Hunan University of Science and
Technology. He is an executive director, the vice chairman, the
chief executive officer and the compliance officer of China
Natural Investment Company Limited (stock code: 8250). Mr.
Cai is also a chairman of Shenzhen Bao Kuang Investment
Development Company Limited*, the deputy chairman of the
board of directors of Jade's International Investment Limited
and the vice president of Shenzhen General Chamber of
Commerce.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Lam Kuo (“Ms. Lam”), aged 66, was appointed as the non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 1
December 2012. Ms. Lam currently is the sub-director and the
shareholder of GOLDEN DRAGON INTERNATIONAL AIR
TRANSPORT COMPANY LIMITED. She was the non-executive
director and the non-executive chairman of Zhong Hua
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1064). Ms. Lam has
over 27 years' business experience in the mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau region.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (“Mr. Chi”), aged 45, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
January 2010. Mr. Chi is also the chairman of each of the audit
committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor of
Accountancy Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and an associate member of Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi
has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
control. He is an executive director of each of Guocang Group
Limited (stock code: 559), China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock
code: 910), Ceneric (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 542) and.
Mr. Chi is also an independent non-executive director of each of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited (stock code: 2322), China
Natural Investment Company Limited (stock code: 8250),
Perfect Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1830) and
L'sea Resources International Holdings Limited (stock code:
195). He was an executive director of M Dream Inworld Limited
(stock code: 8100) from 8 July 2010 to 4 June 2014 and an
independent non-executive director of EverChina Int’'l Holdings
Company Limited (formerly known as Interchina Holdings
Company Limited, stock code: 202) from 4 October 2011 to 15
August 2012.
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Mr. Chan Yun Hing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 66, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012.
Mr. Chan is also the member of each of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of
the Company. He holds a degree of Master of Business
Administration from Research Institute of Tsinghua University in
Shenzhen (RITS), China — University of Wales. Mr. Chan is
currently the director and consultant of Huizhou Da Ya Wan Hui
Li Group Limited*. He is also the Standing Committee Member
of Guangdong Huizhow of the Chinese People's Political
Consultative Conference, the Vice Chairman and the Secretary-
General of Hong Kong Federation of Huichow Associations
Limited and the Deputy Secretary-General of Hong Kong
Federation of Guangdong Hakka Associations.

Mr. Gui Qiangfang (“Mr. Gui”), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 September 2012. Mr.
Gui is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He holds a degree of Doctor of Business
Administration from California Southern University (formerly
known as Southern California University for Professional Studies)
and as a post-doctoral research fellow at California State
University Monterey Bay. Mr. Gui is currently the chairman of
the board of GN International Group and the chairman of World
City Cooperation Organization Committee of China. He
possesses the professional qualifications such as China Certified
Real Estate Appraiser, Certified Public Valuer and Registered
Land Valuer. Mr. Gui has 20 years corporate experience and 5
years working experience in the government of the PRC.

Mr. Hung Yat Ming (“Mr. Hung”), aged 62, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2013. Mr.
Hung is also the member of each of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor degree in Mathematics and obtained a graduate
diploma in Accounting from University of Strathclyde, Glasgow.
Mr. Hung has over 30 years of experience in accounting and
finance and is a financial controller of a Hong Kong listed
company. He is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Scotland and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive
director of each of Asia Standard Hotel Group Limited (stock
code: 292), Asia Orient Holdings Limited (stock code: 214) and
Sunway International Holdings Limited (stock code: 58). He was
an independent non-executive director of Sing Pao Media
Enterprises Limited (stock code: 8010) from 3 September 2008
to 5 August 2011.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin”), aged 56, is a director of 159
Group and is one of world leading scientists in the field of Stem
Cell Technology research and recognised through numerous
pending patents as well as publications. After obtaining his
Doctorate degree from the German University of Marburg in
1994, Dr. Lin worked in the Max Delbr(ick Center For Molecular
Medicine in Berlin. In the mid-90's, he conducted his post
doctoral research at the University of Pennsylvania, USA. In
1997, Dr. Lin returned to Germany and worked in the University
of Kiel. In Germany, he also continued in areas such as
regenerative medicine and cell biology. This was where Dr. Lin
pioneered the reversed induction and incubation techniques of
hematopoietic stem cells and later also did the same for
numerous other stem cells target categories. In 2002, he came
back to China to head up research teams working on reverse
induction techniques, and in the process laid the foundation of
most of the currently used techniques for the production of
significant quantity of pure stem cells.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, changes
in information of Directors are set out below:

Name of Directors  Details of changes

Mr. Chu Hon Pong Resigned as an independent non-
executive director of Frontier Services
Group Limited (formerly known as DVN
(Holdings) Limited, stock code: 500) with
effect from 8 April 2014.

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau Monthly salary has been increased from
HK$41,000 to HK$53,300 with effect
from January 2014.

Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth

Resigned as an executive director of M
Dream Inworld Limited (stock code: 8100)
with effect from 4 June 2014.
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OVERVIEW
The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the annual report for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company is concerned to have high standards of corporate
governance. It is important because the Board believes that
good quality corporate governance would assist the
management to monitor the Company’s business activities
effectively and thus interests of the Shareholders will be well
protected.

The Board has continued to monitor and review the corporate
governance principles and practices to ensure compliance.
Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company had
applied the principles and complied with the principle in the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules, save for the exceptions which are
set out in the relevant section below.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry, all
Directors confirmed that they had complied with such code of
conduct and the required standard of dealings throughout the
year ended 31 March 2014.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
In practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making
in all major matters of the Group, include approving and
monitoring of all policy matters, setting of objectives, annual
budgets and overall strategies, material transaction, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. The day-to-day management, administration and
operations of the Group are delegated to the senior
management of the Group. These responsibilities include the
implementation of decisions of the Board, the coordination and
direction of day-to-day operation and management of the Group
in accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
senior management of the Group and the Board has the full
support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors.
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The Board currently comprises eleven Directors and their
respective roles in the Board are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Vice Chairman)

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Hon Pong

Mr. Chui Kwong Kau

Mr. Cai Da

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

The updated list of Directors and their role and function are
published at the GEM website and the Company’s website.

The profiles of each Director are set out in the "Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 15 to 19
of this annual report.

In compliance with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company currently has four independent non-executive
Directors (the “INEDs") which representing more than one-third
of the Board, and with at least one of them having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDs can assist the management
to formulate the Group’s development strategies, ensure the
Board prepares its financial and other mandatory reports in strict
compliance with required standards, and ensure the Company
maintains appropriate system to protect the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders. The Company has received an
annual confirmation in respect of their independence from each
of the INEDs and the Company believes that their independence
is in compliance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s) among members of the
Board and between the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “CEQ").
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THE BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly and the Directors attended the
meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association (the "Articles”). Notice of all regular Board meetings
are duly given to the Directors at least fourteen (14) days.

Minutes of the Board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail
for any decision made during the meetings. Draft minutes are
circulated to the Directors for comment and final version of the
minutes are circulated to the Directors for records. All minutes
of the Board meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) and open for inspection
by the Directors.

If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board
meeting rather than a written resolution. INEDs who have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at such
Board meeting.

During the Board meetings, the Directors determined overall
strategic direction and objectives and approved quarterly, interim
and annual results, and other significant matters.

There were 39 Board meetings held for the year ended 31
March 2014. Individual attendance of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meetings are set
out in the table on page 26 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CEO

Pursuant to the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
the chairman and chief executive should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and chief executive
should be clearly established and set out in writing. To ensure a
balance of power and authority, the roles of the Chairman and
the CEO are segregated and performed by Ms. Lam Kuo and
Mr. Lu Zhigiang respectively.

The Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and
overseeing the formulation of corporate strategy of the Group.
The CEO is responsible for the overall management and
business operations of the Group.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election.

The non-executive Director and all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Articles.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three
years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPNMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The newly appointed Director is provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company’'s operations and businesses as well as his
responsibilities under relevant statue, laws, rules and
regulations.

During the year under review, the Company had arranged, at the
cost of the Company, a professional seminar conducted by a
professional firm on topics relating to the new amendments to
the Code and associated listing rules as well as the directors’
duties. The Directors who did not attend such seminar, they had
received the relevant reading materials.

All Directors had confirmed their participating in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 March 2014.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and code
provision C.3.3 of the Code. There are four members in the
Audit Committee comprising four INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr.
Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditors, approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors
and any questions of its resignation and dismissal, review the
Group's annual report and accounts, half-year report and
quarterly reports, review the Company's financial controls,
internal control and risk management systems, discuss the
internal control system with management to ensure that
management has performed its duty to have an effective
internal control system, review the Group's financial and
accounting policies and practices and to provide advices and
comments thereon to the Board.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the quarterly and half-yearly results. The Group's
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 had been also reviewed by the Audit Committee
and provided advice and comments thereon.

There were 5 meetings of the Audit Committee include two
meetings with the external auditors of the Company held for the
year ended 31 March 2014. Individual attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee are set out in the table on page
26 of this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee"”) was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with the code provision A.5.2 of the Code. There
are four members in the Nomination Committee comprising four
INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, Mr. Chan Yun Hing,
Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming. Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, assess the independence of the INEDs and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning for the
Directors as well as review and assess the adequacy of the
corporate governance guidelines of the Company and to
recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.
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Board diversity policy

On 12 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity
policy in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code.
The Company recognizes that the Board diversity is an essential
element contributing to the sustainable development of the
Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age,
cultural and educational background or professional experience.
All Directors’ appointments are based on merits and considered
against a variety of objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had
reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board and determined the policy for the nomination of Directors.

There were 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee held for
the year ended 31 March 2014. Individual attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out in the table
on page 26 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with the code provision B.1.2
of the Code. There are five members in the Remuneration
Committee comprising one executive Director, namely Mr. Chui
Kwong Kau, and four INEDs, namely Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth,
Mr. Chan Yun Hing, Mr. Gui Qiangfang and Mr. Hung Yat Ming.
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company'’s
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration, and to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’'s corporate
goals and objectives.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
reviewed the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors
and assessed performance of executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee adopted a model in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the Code, the Remuneration Committee
determines, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.
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There were 2 meetings of the Remuneration Committee held
for the year ended 31 March 2014. Individual attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the

table on page 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORD AT

MEETINGS

Details of the attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings
and its respective committees meetings, and general meetings
during the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in the

following table:

BE_T-HNF=A=t+—HIFE HFHEE
EEZIEHEE?;TTW/AE :Fﬁ@\”;/\a EXE\Z{%‘JH:'I
f%ﬂﬁﬁkﬁ’\$$¥&%26,§2§ﬁ%

EEZHFERTE
TR SEFHE_FT-NF=-_A=1+—HL
FEEFEFECRMEBAZZEBEEEUN

BRERKG 2 R85 -

Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend

HREERY/ HaEREREZRY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual Extraordinary
Board  Committee = Committee =~ Committee General General
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting Meeting
Bxg EBRZEEE® REZEE  FHzEe Yk e
B2 EE EE 6 6 b= &
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Jiang Hongging EhELE 2139 NATER  NATER  NATER 01 0/1
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Note 1) #hasse st (ffst1) 922 NAMER  NANER  NATER  NATER 01
Mr. Lu Zhigiang bt 3939 NATEA  NATEE  NATER 111 0/1
Mr. Chu Hon Pong REREE 239 NATEAR  NATEE  NATER 0/t 01
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau BERIEE 39/39 N/A T EF N/A N EF 2/2 11 1
Mr. Cai Da gt 39/39 N/A B N/A N EA N/A N A " on
Ms. Li Mei (Note 2) Tt (#2) 5/6 N/A P iEF N/A N iEF N/A N 0n NIA R EH
Non-executive Director FUTES
Ms. Lam Kuo X 239 NATEAR  NATEE  NATER 0/ 01
Independent Non-executive ~ BUH¥HTEE
Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEERE 22/39 5/5 7 22 o n
Mr. Chan Yun Hing REELE 22139 5/5 /1 22 0N 0o
Mr. Gui Qiangfang HEFEE 22/39 505 i 22 0/t 0/1
Mr. Hung Yat Ming HABLE 22139 5/5 /1 22 0N 7
Notes: et -
1. appointed on 23 September 2013 1. RZZB—=FNAZ+=HEZT
2. retired on 1 August 2013 2. RZZ—=F)\A—HRME
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the Chairman
should attend the annual general meeting and should invite the
chairman of each of the audit, nomination and remuneration
committees to attend. However, Ms. Lam Kuo and Mr. Chi Chi
Hung, Kenneth, being the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, were unable to attend the annual general meeting
held on 1 August 2013 due to their other prior engagement. Ms.
Lam and Mr. Chi invited Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, an executive
Director to chair and answer questions at the annual general
meeting of the Company respectively. The external auditors of
the Company attended the annual general meeting of the
Company to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditors’ report, the
accounting policies and auditors’ independence.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the Code, all non-executive
Directors should attend general meetings. However, certain
non-executive Directors were unable to attend the general
meetings due to their other prior engagements. Details of
attendance of the general meetings are set out in the above
table.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF
THE ACCOUNTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing
Rules. The responsibility of the auditors is set out in the
“Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group's system of internal control.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the Company's financial
controls, internal control and risk management systems and
reported its findings and made recommendations to the Board.

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Board periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness
and adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control. The Board also satisfied with the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programs and budget.
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REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The Audit Committee had reviewed the performance of Pan-
China (H.K.) CPA Limited (“Pan-China”) as the independent
auditors of the Company and proposed to re-appoint Pan-China
as the independent auditors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM").

As at 31 March 2014, the fee payable to Pan-China in respect of
the audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the
Company are as follows:

BB &
BERZBEeCRARE(BE)@HMEBRER
REI([REDERRRBBLZHBEN 2 KRR - I
BEENALBEEERBFAS(RRAFX
g) LEBRESE R BED

RIZ-—ME=A=+—0H AR FZHEMER
# Z%V&%%VﬁﬁkﬁiﬁiHZ@N@ZIDT:

Amount
Type of services R ERE =
Audit services EAZRTE HK$700,000 7% 7T
Non-audit services LIRS HK$120,000 77T
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

Mr. Lam Tze Chung (“Mr. Lam”) was appointed as the
Company Secretary with effect from 1 March 2013. Mr. Lam is
responsible for advising the Board through the Chairman and/or
the CEO on governance matters. He has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31
March 2014.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

According to the Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convent such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Any vote of the Shareholders at general meetings must be taken
by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The results of the poll
will be posted on the GEM website and the Company's website
after each general meeting.
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SENDING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD BY
THE SHAREHOLDERS

Any enquiries from the Shareholders to the Board can be sent in
writing to the head office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Communication with the Shareholders is given high priority. The
Company aims to provide the Shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency through the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, announcements and
circulars made through the GEM website and the Company's
website.

The Company are encouraged the Shareholders to attend
general meetings of the Company and to put their enquiries to
the Board directly. The Chairman and the members of relevant
committees will be also available to answer the questions in the
general meetings.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year under review, there are no changes in the
constitutional documents of the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and stem cell technology
businesses; (ii) trading business; and (iii) money lending
business. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 39 to 41 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2014.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five-year financial summary of the published results, assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last
five financial years and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on
pages 155 and 156 of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves and distributable reserves
of the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively of this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
and there was no restriction against such rights under the laws
of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the Company’s share capital and share options are set
out in Notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Jiang Hongaing (Vice Chairman)
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Vice Chairman)
(appointed on 23 September 2013)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chu Hon Pong
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau
Mr. Cai Da
Ms. Li Mei
(retired on 1 August 2013)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Lam Kuo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Chan Yun Hing

Mr. Gui Qiangfang

Mr. Hung Yat Ming

In accordance with the Article 86(3) of the Articles, Mr. David Lin
Kao Kun shall hold office until the AGM. He is subject to re-
election and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the
AGM.

In accordance with the Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Lu
Zhigiang, Mr. Chui Kwong Kau, Mr. Cai Da and Mr. Chan Yun
Hing, being one-third of the Directors will retire as Directors by
rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM except Mr. Cai Da.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from
each of the INEDs in respect of their independence during the
year in accordance with Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
all INEDs are still being considered to be independent.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Profile details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings by the
Directors as referred to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each
of the Company

EEREASH 2 ER

BMEBENARRSNEEAMERRNFRNRZ
MBAEBEXEBNSBEN BT ERIEE
BEHEE AR -

EERIETRAEBREZ Z2ES

R-TB-—NME=ZA=1+—H EFHAQATE
TTBRABRANRR S EARBAREE(EERE
BRPIFE N BEE G RMEGR ((RERAERK
Bl FEXVER) 2 Bt - BRI REST - #A
RIBEFESH RIAERPIEXVHBET RSN HAMNE
ARBIREZ Pz EmPORR (BRERIBEES &
HIE (ROI B R RN S E PR F R < m
SOXR) - HIRFEAIER EWAHRAE 546 £56.67
G ESEETEE CREREARTTHNEAR
A B AP 2 sk BOR R IR

RERRBREEIMEBTIZEBERZHR

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of Company'’s Issued

Name of Director Capacity Shares Held Share Capital
R NI TR Sy

Y 514 FrERoE A RAEBNE DL
(Note)

(Ktat)

Mr. David Lin Kao Kun Beneficial owner 80,000,000 2.03

S E BEREAA
Note: The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,950,332,805 shares as at 31
March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company nor their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES
Details of the share options schemes are set out in Note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives, and based on the public records filed on the
website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by the
Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the Directors and the chief executives)
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which have
been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in
the register of the Company required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly, to be
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, were as
follows:

EERBROIES ZEF

RERNEARE SEFHRFEE BB
TR T Z F &I EER T M I RERRA A
Befn sk Bz MR Z A - IR BITETA&SE
BN RRBSEEMME AR MBS ETY(E
Mk BEBFARESE ZBIARKEFT
LRI B E R A E AN R Z 2 F A o

B RESTE
B 2 HBERAFERZGA M IEREN
5F31°

FERR

R-E—NE=A=+—H HREERTETK
ANEFTH BIE EEEBIAMBL 2 AFLEN
RNRABZEEDE A TALTHAR(EENE
BITWMABRBRIN AR T Z &5 s BRI D+
FHEEREBEEFESRBEBRAIEXVIBE2RI D
BEXAAANTREBRCARATRIEELSA RS
GBI E3B6IEBEEZ ETMERRAXE - o
BEENEEBEAEWNEENMATE—BER TRASE
BT AEMKEAR ZHREARNE HIEE 7 (T8
BIAE AT B 5% 8 A _FRERS

Approximate

Total Number Percentage of

Number of of Sharesand  the Company’s
Name of Substantial Number of Underlying Underlying Issued Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Held Shares Held Shares Held Capital
FEROR  BRAREESG
TERREE LR &4 FEROEE AREAERGHE HEROEE REABOEI
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(Hrzt1) (Hfzt5)
Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin") Interest of controlled 141,582,801 (L) 102,625,600 (L) 244,208,401 (L)
MHEEL ((MiEL]) corporation (Note 2) (Note 1)
REEERR (Hit2) (W7t 1)
40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
(Note 2)
(Hfzt2)
Interest of spouse 36,717,660 (L) 24,190,320 (L) 60,907,980 (L)
Fo iR (Note 3) (Note 1)
(Hiz3) (Hfzt1)
6,084,000 (S) 6,084,000 (S)
(Note 3)
(H3)
305,116,381 (L) 772 (L)
46,084,000 (S) 1.17(5)
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Approximate

Total Number Percentage of
Number of of Sharesand  the Company's
Name of Substantial Number of Underlying Underlying Issued Share
Shareholders Capacity Shares Held Shares Held Shares Held Capital
FEROR  GAAREES
TERREE AR 54 FRRHEE MEEBROHE HERGEH REAENEDH
(Note 1) (Note 5)
(Hfzt1) (Kit5)
Ms. Lin Liuyin (“Ms. Lin") Beneficial owner 23,086,680 (L) - 23,086,680 (L)
L ((Hhzt]) BB 6,084,000 (S) - 6,084,000 (S)
Interest of controlled 13,630,980 (L) 24,190,320 (L) 37,821,300 (L)
corporation (Note 1)
R (Hizt1)
Interested of spouse 244,208,401 (L) - 244,208,401 (L)
B (Note 4)
(Hizt4)
40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
(Note 4)
(Hiit4)
305,116,381 (L) 7.72 (L)
46,084,000 (S) 1.17.(S)
Stem Cells Anti-Aging Beneficial owner 190,233,322 (L) - 190,233,322 (L)
Medicine Technologies BEREEA 40,000,000 (S) - 40,000,000 (S)
Holdings Limited Interest of controlled - 146,608,000 (L) 146,608,000 (L)
("Stem Cells") corporation (Note 1)
BlnzEZES R EEER
RirERER LA
(84
336,841,322 (L) 8.53 (L)
40,000,000 (S) 1.01(S)
Solar Might Investments Beneficial owner 239,074,333 (L) - 239,074,333 (L)
Limited (“Solar Might") EaEEA
GEEERRAR([BRL)  Interest of controlled - 91,380,667 (L) 91,380,667 (L)
corporation (Note 1)
LB RS (Frzt1)
330,455,000 (L) 8.37 (L)
Mr. Deng Jun Jie (“Mr. Deng”) Interest of controlled 239,074,333 (L) 91,380,667 (L) 330,455,000 (L) 8.37 (L)
HEnTE(SEE]) corporation (Note 1)
R RS (Hrzt1)
Add Talent Holdings Limited ~ Beneficial owner - 249,333,333 (L) 249,333,333 (L) 6.31 (L)
("Add Talent")

REZBARLAE (2]

(L) denotes Long Position
(S) denotes Short Position

ESBBA

L) KXHFE
(S) tFAXE
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ESEWRE

Notes:

1. These underlying shares under this column were consideration shares, to
be allotted and issued by the Company to Add Talent or its nominees upon
fulfillment of the terms and conditions of the agreement. Add Talent was
owned as to approximately 58.8% by Stem Cells and approximately
36.65% by Solar Might. Stem Cells was beneficially owned as to 70% by
Dr. Lin and 16.5% by Ms. Lin. Solar Might was wholly and beneficially
owned by Mr. Deng. Details of the consideration shares and the
shareholding structure of Add Talent were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 4 September 2012, 6 September 2012, 11
September 2012 and 18 September 2012.

2. These shares were registered in the name of Stem Cells which was
beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Lin. Under the SFO, Dr. Lin was
deemed to be interested in these shares held by Stem Cells.

3. These shares were registered in the name of Ms. Lin who is the spouse of
Dr. Lin. Under the SFO, Dr. Lin was deemed to be interested in these
shares held by Ms. Lin.

4. These shares were registered in the name of Stem Cells which was
beneficially owned as to 70% by Dr. Lin who is the spouse of Ms. Lin.
Under the SFO, Ms. Lin was deemed to be interested in these shares held
by Stem Cells.

5. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 3,950,332,805 shares as at 31
March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, so far as is
known to the Directors and the chief executives, and based on
the public records filed on the website of the Stock Exchange
and records kept by the Company, no other person or
corporation had interest in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which would be recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or who will
be, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year under
review.
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Directors’ Repdrt

ESEWE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the five largest suppliers of the
Group accounted for approximately 99.98% of the Group's total
purchases and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for
approximately 70.94% of the Group’s total purchases.
Aggregate sales attributable to the Group’'s five largest
customers were approximately 97.71% of the Group’s sales
while the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 74.18% of the Group's sales.

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of
the issued capital of the Company) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s major suppliers and customers for the year ended
31 March 2014.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors, substantial
shareholders, and their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which causes
or may cause a significant competition with the business of the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicity available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this annual report as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 20 to
29 in this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 have been audited by the auditors of the Company,
Pan-China, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the AGM. A resolution for the
reappointment of Pan-China as the auditors of the Company will
be proposed at the AGM.

By order of the Board
Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited

Lu Zhigiang
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014
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Independent Auditors’ Report

B ZBAHRE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong
Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group"”) set out on pages 39 to 154, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of the report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independeni: Auditors’ Report

B 2 RETHRE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

Hong Kong, 25 June 2014

Tsang Chiu Keung
Practising Certificate Number P04968
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Otherzomp{'ehensive Income

GEeBEsEREMEEHKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-—=F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
e FHET FET
(Restated)
(#&E7)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
TURNOVER =F 20 6(a) 679,891 39,152
COST OF SALES HERA& (665,268) (36,482)
GROSS PROFIT EA 14,623 2,670
GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF HELD-FOR- HEFEEERE 2 WE
TRADING INVESTMENTS 8,527 590
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON HELD-FOR- BEEEREZATEES
TRADING INVESTMENTS 23,140 7.319
OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME Hihlm R WA FEE 6(b) 5,849 7,495
ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER THRREMESERS
OPERATING EXPENSES (74,244) (49,123)
FINANCE COSTS BsER 7 -
FAIR VALUE CHANGE ON CONTINGENT FENZHAREZ
CONSIDERATION PAYABLE PNSEE ¥ 36 21,193 17,453
IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL EERE 18 (131,913) (28,205)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BB ATE 1B 8 (132,825) (41,801)
INCOME TAX Frigst 9 (12) (11)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM REFALEXRL 2
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEEIE (132,837) (41,812)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GAEBERRAEMEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—MEF TE—=F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F&T FET
(Restated)
(FeE75)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS B IEEK
LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED RECOKRIEEK
OPERATIONS =] 10 (52,121) (1,314)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEHE (184,958) (43,126)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: Hit2mEKa :
Items that may be reclassified HERREEF DB E 8w
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEH :
Exchange difference arising on translation & /FINEREL ZEH,
of foreign operations =58 2,715 646
Release of translation reserve upon HEBEHEEER
disposal of assets and liabilities held B EFRRRIE X
for sale s (6,852) -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REFHA
FOR THE YEAR 2K (4,137) 646
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEERMH
FOR THE YEAR WS 4858 (189,095) (42,480)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEEIEEE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
— owners of the Company — RAREHEEA (152,201) (35,614)
— non-controlling interests — JEIE R RE R (32,757) (7,512)
(184,958) (43,126)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AEEEMAEHERSEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
— owners of the Company — AR EA (157,410) (35,176)
— non-controlling interests — JEIE R R RS (31,685) (7,304)
(189,095) (42,480)

4 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014



179 e o

1 .
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Otherzomp{'ehensive Income

GEeBEsEREMEEHKRER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

Note(s) 2014
B 5T —E—mE

Loss per share: &S 13
From continuing and discontinued REFBELSEREKRIE

operations E¥

— Basic (HK Cents) — AERCEW)

— Diluted (HK Cents) — #Eg CBL)

From continuing operations
— Basic (HK Cents)

KEFBRLEER
— EARCGE)

— Diluted (HK Cents)

— #58 (GBAL)

F3R 2014

2013
—F—=

(Restated)

(#eE5)

(1.19)

(1.19)

(1.16)

(1.16)
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Coﬂsoliqateh S[atement of Financial Position

SEMBR R R

As at 31 March 2014 R—ZE—E=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E—MEF TE—=F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F&T FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WMENMEKE 16 23,529 128,953
Intangible assets mEE 17 62,000 -
Goodwvill [EES 18 42,000 178,718
Available-for-sale investments L ERE 20 2,509 929
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEYZE - BB &
plant and equipment BB IES 29,658 -
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS kREBEELE 159,696 308,600
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 21 11,163 47,641
Trade and other receivables TE UK BR 38 K% Eo A fE U 5018 23 153,595 242,945
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBEHRE 24 69,588 62,876
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHES 25 47,718 29,157
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS RBEEAE 282,064 382,619
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Bank borrowing RITIEE 26 - 35,910
Trade and other payables FETBR SR N E b FE A5 50IR 28 63,737 138,951
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES BB EEEE 63,737 174,861
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFH 218,327 207,758
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Contingent consideration payable FERFsAAE 31,167 52,360
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEERE 31,167 52,360
NET ASSETS EEFHE 346,856 463,998
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR AR fE 15
Share capital R& A 30 158,013 131,678
Reserves & 32 218,392 297,041
Equity attributable to the owners of RARHEE ANEEER
the Company 376,405 428,719
Non-controlling interests FEIERRRERS (29,549) 35,279
TOTAL EQUITY SRR 346,856 463,998
Lu Zhigiang Chui Kwong Kau
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEF
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Statement of Financial Position
y
WIE |
B #E AR R
As at31 March 2014 R —ZE—M&=H=+—H
2014 2013
—E-NF —E-—=F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 16 49 82
Investment in subsidiaries RTB AR Z®E 19 53,439 170,780
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEERTE 53,488 170,862
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from subsidiaries Al NG ] 22 217,269 154,423
Trade and other receivables TE LK BR 8 K% Eo A fE L 50 TB 23 25,701 94,195
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 24 69,588 62,876
Cash and bank balances RE RIRITHERR 25 19,376 6,834
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS RBEEHAE 331,934 318,328
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBBE
Amount due to subsidiaries FERI B AR FIE 27 734 743
Trade and other payables JE A BR B % B Ath B A 3R 28 866 876
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES REEERE 1,600 1,619
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 330,334 316,709
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAE
Contingent consideration payable FET B AAEB 31,167 52,360
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEBEEE 31,167 52,360
NET ASSETS EEFHE 352,655 435,211
CAPITAL AND RESERVES IR
Share capital & 30 158,013 131,678
Reserves = 32 194,642 303,533
TOTAL EQUITY R 352,655 435,211

Lu Zhigiang Chui Kwong Kau
ERE ERER
Executive Director Executive Director
HITEE HITEF
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &%

sg@ P
Coﬂsoll ateh S[atement of Changes in Equity

%é#ﬁﬁ@@)%‘%

—E-MESAS AR

Attributable to the owners of the Company

KARREAES
Share Non-
Share Share Special options  Translation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
% R EE BhfE  BRERE BERE ZitFE am  FERER a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL BT FAL TAL TEL FEL TEL TEL
t 1 April 2012 NZE-—ENA-H 9,712 300,302 (39,998) 9,774 4,035 (95,842) 277,983 56,068 334,051
Loss for the year TEREE - - - - - (35,614) (36,614) (7512) (43,126)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ BE BN ERELZERZE
translation of foreign operations - - - - 438 - 438 208 646
Total comprehensive income AEERENGER
for the year - - - - 438 (35,614) (35,176) (7,304) (42,480)
Issue of ordinary shares under  BEENEERTLBK
share placing 19,940 76,165 - - - - 96,105 - 96,105
Issue of ordinary shares for FREMELDRTEER
acquisition of subsidiaries 12,026 72,110 - - - - 84,136 - 84,136
Acquisition of subsidiaries N B AR - - - - - - - (13,485) (13,485)
Recognition of equity-settled BAMER AR EE R AR
share-based payments BERZIR - - - 5,671 - - 5,671 - 5,671
At 31 March 2013 and RZE-Z£=fA=+-HR
at 1 April 2013 —E-=¥MA-A 131,678 448,577 (39,998) 15,445 4,473 (131,456) 428,119 35,279 463,998
Loss for the year TEEFE - - - - - (152,201)  (152,201) (32,757)  (184,958)
Release of translation reserve upon (&M B A AR RIAE L
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 6,852) - (6,852) - (6,852)
Exchange differences arisingon ~ REENERELERES
translation of foreign operations - - - - 1,643 - 1,643 1,072 2,715
Total comprehensive income TER2ENELEE
for the year - - - - (5,209) (152,201) (157,410) (31,685) (189,095)
Issue of ordinary shares under RN EERTLER
share placing 26,335 76,222 - - - - 102,557 - 102,557
Recognition of equity-settled TNER AR EERARR
share-based payments BEBRIRT - - - 2,539 - - 2,539 - 2,639
Share option lapsed BAYGERE - - - (17,013) - 17,013 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT - - - - - - - 33,143) (33,143)
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=1-H 158,013 524,799 (39,998) m (736) (266,644) 376,405 (29,549) 346,856
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows /

meaRETREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ = —NF=HA=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E—IF —E—=F
Note(s) HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHET
(Restated)
(seE5)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REREXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax bR AT E B
Continuing operations SIS (132,825) (41,801)
Discontinued operations BRIEER (51,550) (148)
(184,375) (41,949)
Adjustments for: BB TS EEL AR
Interest expenses FEMAX 1,901 2,682
Interest income F B A (5,826) (7,091)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE  MENEEZ
and equipment [=gi] 2,110
Impairment of property, Yz - BELEREZRE
plant and equipment 50,253 -
Impairment of goodwill [EENERED 18 140,801 28,205
Fair value change on contingent FERSAREBZ AFE
consideration payable peaEg) 36 (21,193) (17,453)
Impairment losses of other receivables Hih a2
BB 3,882
Impairment loss on other receivables Hth fe 5B R E =
written back (247)
Amortization of leasehold land THE 1 b iy 4
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BENREITE
equipment 11,384 10,891
Gain on disposal of assets and HERIEHEEER
liabilities held-for-sale BEz W= (5,015) -
Gain on disposal of held-for-trading HERFEEERE
investments Pl & (8,527) (590)
Property, plant and equipment VI - B MR i
written off 1,166 -
Fair value change on held-for-trading FEEEREZATE
investments & (23,140) (7,319)
Equity-settled share-based payments ARz 7 A E K LA
B BERE 2 5K 2,539 5,671
Operating loss before changes in LEESEH P EEEIE
working capital (40,030) (21,304)
Increase in inventories FEEm (9,833) (692)
Increase in trade and JE UG BR 3 % B A R YR IR
other receivables 0 (44,481) (67,496)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and JFE AT BR 30 K EL b FE A< FRIE
other payables #hn, CRid) 17,718 (54,587)
Net cash used in operations EIEATREIR S HRE (76,626) (144,079)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BT R B ZE TS (571) (319)
Net cash used in operating activities AR S 558 (77,197) (144,398)
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Coﬂsoliqateh S[atement of Cash Flows

HEBSHER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E T —NF=A=+—HIFE
2014
—E-lF
Note(s) HK$'000
B 5T F&T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received EUA B 1,775
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EE Y% - W5 MRE (8,476)
Purchase of held-for-trading investments B Bi5{EE B8 E (31,608)
Deposits for acquisition of property, WHEMZ - BRE L&

plant and equipment ZE® (29,658)
Proceeds from disposal of held-for-trading H&H1EE Z8EFTE

investments A 56,563
Payment to acquire intangible assets M BB EEN (26,000)
Net cash inflow on disposal of HEFEHEEERAGBZ

assets and liabilities held for sale WEMAFEE 37 30,767
Net cash outflow on acquisition WERB AR ZIRE Rt

of subsidiaries FER 34 (4,105)
Net cash used in investing activities & EE TR S FR (4,742)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RERMETHZRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of BT E BRI IR F R

ordinary shares 30 102,557

Proceeds from bank borrowing
Repayment of bank borrowing
Interest paid

BT E AR
B IRITIEE
EFlE

(1,901)

Net cash generated from financing
activities

BEEBAFHESFR

100,656

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes

RERRESESEYEM
(R2) F8

FOZRERREEEY

SEEERD Y B

18,717

29,157

(156)

47,718

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZHEERESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReERBRESESEYWDIT

EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

Be RRTESH

47,718

46 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

2013

T =5
HK$'000
FHET
(Restated)
(F&E5))

7,091
(13,167)
(13,333)

96,105
35,675
(18,452)

(2,582)

110,746

(80,115)

108,931

341

29,157

29,157
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group Limited
(the "Company"”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered
office is situated at Cricket Square Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies. The principal place of business in
Hong Kong is situated at Unit 2704, 27/F, West Tower
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) are principally engaged in (i) anti-aging and
stem cell technology businesses; (ii) trading business; and
(i) money lending business.

F3R 2014
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onsolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. EAFHIRRETEBMBHREE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Bl ((EBMBEHREEL ]
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time NAREFEERN REBFAERBATHER
the following new and revised Standards, Amendments et e ((EAestAag ) BHERZ

and Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") effective for accounting periods beginning on

or after 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 10
BB R EERIZFE 1057
HKFRS 11
BB HRELERZE 115
HKFRS 12
BB BHREERNE 1255
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendments)

FEMBHREERIE 105 - BEMH
HEERIE 11 R RBBPBRELER

F125 (1BETA)
HKFRS 13
BB HRELERIZE 135
HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

EEGTERE195] (=T ——FEF])

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

EREGTERE 275 (ZF——FEF])

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

EEGTERIE 285 (T ——F(EF])

HKAS 1 (Amendments)
ERGEIERIZE 158 (BRI A)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

BB HELERE 75 (BT A)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

ERUBREER (EFTA)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

FE (AR BRERELZES) 2k

2055

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior accounting years,

except as described below.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

T-—FNA-BRHZEFAB G HRE
R FR] A RTHERN ~ B7] iR ([ 57
I REERT BB B IMELER ) -

Consolidated Financial Statements

RE T BHRE

Joint Arrangements

Bt & 22 HE

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HithERBER %

Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements
Disclosure of Interests and Other Entities: Transitional Guidance

RAMBRE  BMATHREMERER 2 WE - BRES

Fair Value Measurement

AF(EE

Employee Benefits

B BIEF

Separate Financial Statements

AV e

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

RABEDARAEDE

Presentation of Iltems of Other Comprehensive Income

E5EMmEAEKEIEE

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

WE —BEVBEERTBERE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle except for
HKAS1(Amendments)

BEAMBHRERN - ZZNGF 2T ——F RN FELE
(BBGETERZE 15 (IBFTA) BRIN)

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

BRBEERB 2 FHRRA

B NP B SN - AR E AT RAEIERT
FEVHRELENHAEERK L BES
AEEZMBRALMAL BEERTE -
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

The Company has applied for the first time the HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements. HKFRS 10 replaces the
requirements of HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements that deal with consolidated financial
statements and HK(SIC) Int-12 Consolidation — Special
Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an investee
when (a) it has power over the investee, (b) it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and (c) has the ability to use its power to
affect its returns. All three of these criteria must be met
for an investor to have control over an investee. Previously,
control was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. Additional guidance has been included
in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control over
an investee. Some guidance included in HKFRS 10 that
deals with whether or not an investor that owns less than
50% of the voting rights in an investee has control over
the investee is relevant to the Group.

The directors of the Company made an assessment as at
the date of initial application of HKFRS 10 (i.e. 1 April 2013)
as to whether or not the Group has control over its
subsidiaries in accordance with the new definition of
control and the related guidance set out in HKFRS 10. The
directors concluded that it has had control over its
subsidiaries since the acquisition in prior periods on the
basis of the Group’s absolute size of holding in subsidiaries
and the relative size of and dispersion of the shareholdings
owned by the other shareholders.

F3R 2014

2.

ARBEBAREAEEVBREEAF10
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TR BB G ERIF 275 [ 58 LB
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HIEERID AT RBEAEER 2B R
LERRARERGTEmD - BEMBR
SREAIF 105D MATEIMES| - ARREIR
BEMRBHREHRBAEGE - BEY
BRELERNE10REAAE TRAKEERA
#Hal - NRERAREHRDNE0% KR
RZREEROTAREHIREHR -

ARREEREREREEMBHRELER
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad; the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS
13 apply to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs require
or permit fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g.
net realisable value for the purposes of measuring
inventories or value in use for impairment assessment
purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a
liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a liability)
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an
exit price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application from 1 April
2013. In addition, specific transitional provisions were given
to entities such that they need not apply the disclosure
requirements set out in the Standard in comparative
information provided for periods before the initial application
of the Standard. In accordance with these transitional
provisions, the Group has not made any new disclosures
required by HKFRS 13 for the 2013 comparative period.
Other than the additional disclosures, the application of
HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. As a
result of the requirements of HKFRS 13, the Group's
policies for measuring fair value have been amended.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

2.

R REETERMBREE
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ERMBHREENFE1IHR AFEE ]
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and is applicable to
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements (please see notes 43(b) for details).

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income.
The amendments introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, the
‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’ and the ‘income statement’ is renamed as the
‘statement of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures to
be made in the other comprehensive income section such
that items of other comprehensive income are grouped
into two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either
before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes.

F3R 2014
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

A %,.Wﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁﬁﬁ

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING Bl ([ EBMEHREERN]) (&)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and REEI IR R ER T2 BB R ERR
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that ZHEI B ET AR  (EET AN RE -

have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
BEMERELENE 105 -
BEBMBEHmELEUNE 125 &%
BB QT ERE 275 2 185]
Amendments to HKFRS 11
BB BHRELERZE 115 2185
Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38
ARG ERE 16T T B AR
38R ZIER]

Amendments to HKAS 19
BEREEEERFE 199 2185]
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7
BEMGEHRELENEIFR R
BRT B ELERE 752185
Amendments to HKAS 32
BB G ERIE 3250 21E5T
Amendments to HKAS 36
BEGTTERE 369 ZIEF]
Amendments to HKAS 39
A ERTERIE 3958 2 185
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB HHRELER] 2 1EF]
Amendments to HKFRSs
BB GRE LR ZEFT
HKFRS 9
BB R EERIZE W
HKFRS 14
BB HHRELERZE 145
HKFRIC 21

BEMGHREREREE -—REE 215

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 m

Investment Entities"

BEEBO

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations®

WHERFAZSERER Gt LHE®

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation®

MERTERBEITRZEEO

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®?
RERMNGTE - EEHK?
Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures®

AR BERE RIS 95 2 58 A 3k B B BRI E ©

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities!
BB EERMBEED

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets"
B EE IR FEEKED

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PTHETATEREAGIHECEED

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle®
BEAMBHRERN - EFE - FRBACFEUEY
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle®?
ERMBREEN S ——FET——FHRACFELE?
Financial Instruments®

BT A

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

RERIERE®

Levies™

s

MNoZE—MFE-A-ARERFARZFERRE

3K
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 @ NZZT—NFLA— A HEgMBzFEHREE
3K
@ Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be & TER — aE MBS RE B ISR E &
determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised AIFE O M EHERREERET
“@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with @ NZZT—NFELA— A HEgMBzFEHEE

limited exceptions

B Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on )

or after 1 January 2016

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016 )

B2 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

B BRAERBIIMER
RNZB—RF-A-RRZEFRZENERRE
BRI EERRE 2 FEI B IR ER
RNEE—RF-A—RARERFRZFERRE
33
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T—RLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
hedge accounting.

HKFRS 9 requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that
have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values at
the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have an impact on the amount reported in
respect of the Group’s available-for-sale investment.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the
“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in the exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS
17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

onsolidated Financial Statements
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are disclosed in note 5.

F3R 2014

3.

mAEYE (&)
AN BB HREMS - XA FEFENR

BAFEASEZHARBE 2 IBEREER
BABBHATEASEE 2 EEEmMD
BE1 2R3 FIBWOT

s FIEBABEBERTEAH :Ef“
BB EEME FHRREESN
WE (TERE)

w
Bl

s FE2RWMABBEFE1RMEERE
PASN - BB ER BB BERSKEE
BRzZBABE X

s FEI3NBABBEAME
TRBEBABE -

EXBEZ

RENETEMBRELENZEA ﬁ?ﬁf&&
RESKEEE LA - A7 Jr)SUE““

BRHE At RBRREFERR Z%%
KFT2HEAE  BE WARIHZ G -
ZERFRARBRIIREBETER RS
EREEERBERTBAE 2 HMERM
TR - B RS E A E AL ORI B A
Rz BERAERMEEDHIEG 2 2% -
ERGERAEEZSFEAEMER

ZEMF REBRRSFERS - BE5
135+5E TIERTE - BEEFIEXEZRRE
BRI @MERT fhat I R HEFT
%EJ“‘HH&*XHJ%W JEAf/uT“‘,HH&
K

J
ﬂi HAFR R

FER & BB mE LA - B EPTEH
HmaMBsRRMMEGFTITRERZTZE
BRBRCERZENWELRE -

BEEEGHERMEEARRAR b



P > ‘.

Notes to the Consohdated Financial Statements

MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

56

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give
it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group's voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have,
the current ability to direct the relevant
activities at the time that decisions need to be
made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(a)

F3R 2014

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiary to bring it
accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies. All intragroup assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’'s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

58

(a)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts
at the date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
(including any components of other comprehensive
income attributable to them), and (iii) recognizes the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest,
with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity,
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

F3R 2014

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value,
which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19
"Employee Benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment at the acquisition date; and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
“Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

60

(b)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Business combinations (continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’'s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis
specified in HKFRS.

When the consideration the Group transfers in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the
measurement period (which cannot exceed one year
from acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed as of the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b)

(c)

F3R 2014

Business combinations (continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports
provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.

Subsidiary

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the group and other parties) are
considered.

Investment in subsidiaries is included in the
Company's statement of financial position at cost
less any identified impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business (see the accounting policy
above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

62

(c)

(d)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Subsidiary (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata
basis based on of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for
sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e)

(f)

F3R 2014

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivables and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes, on the following
bases:

(i) Sales income is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has passed;

(i) Service income is recognized at the completion
of the service rendered;

(i) Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition;

(iv)  Income arising from sales of financial
instruments is recognised on the completion of
transfer of risks and rewards to the transferee;
and

(v)  Dividend income from investments (including
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale investments) is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established (provided that it
is probable that economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

64

(f)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Leasing (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire lease is
classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.
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E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f)

(g)

F3R 2014

Leasing (continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "“prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, transactions in currencies other than the
Group's functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for exchange difference arising on
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognized directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognized in other
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

66

(g)

(h)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations (including comparatives) are
expressed in Hong Kong dollars using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expense items (including comparatives)
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the rate prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
included in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

F3R 2014

Employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Company operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the "MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on percentage of employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in PRC are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
governments. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognized as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognized
until the time of leave.

Share options granted to employees are accounted
for in accordance with the policies set out in note 4(t)
(i)(1).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

68

(i)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

onsolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

()

(k)

F3R 2014

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets or liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including owner-
occupied land and buildings held for use in the supply
of service, or administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below),
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k)

70 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment, after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, if any, over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land

Over the lease term

(k)
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Leasehold improvements
HERE

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
B HERERE

Motor vehicles

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of relevant
lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Construction in progress, which represents assets
under construction, is stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The cost comprises construction costs
including direct materials, labour, contractors’ fee
and overheads attributable to bringing the production
facilities to its present condition. When the assets
are completed and ready for use, the carrying
amount of the assets will be reclassified to property,
plant and equipment and depreciated in accordance
with the policy as set out above.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n

F3R 2014

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis. Amortisation commences when
the intangible assets are available for use.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° It is technically feasible to develop the product
for it to be sold;

o Adequate resources are available to complete
the development;

° There is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

o The Group is able to sell the product;

° Sale of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and

° Expenditure on the project can be measured
reliably.

4. FESFEHE@)

n

BREE

ERREAARERFHZENE
EN LR ANER - RIS ERE
BEARERFRZ B EELRKAR
ZETHH MR RETREE R -
BEREREIN B ERFHAE
R BHMEMRBHGHERAFHNR
BIH% - XA 2 EMESH P E
RAIEEEAR - BLEER AIHE
PSP SH o

TR T2 BANEEBHER AN
io
BHEHEE (R —ERNERERE
2REEE) NBEE 2 RVAE
BRI T2BRREBLER TR
FARER -

o KM ERAMTARBEREHE

s ARREBERTHFE:

s BEEKMHEEZEM:

BEEGHNERNEERFRAR 71



"y Ja

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

12

n

(m)

Intangible assets (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-
generated intangible assets is the sum of the
expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria
listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or
when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains and losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flow have not
been adjusted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m)

F3R 2014

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
excluding goodwill (continued)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there
is an indicator that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under other
standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as revaluation decrease under other standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under other standard, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under other standard.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

74

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified into following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(n) Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is either held for trading or it is
designated as at FVTPL

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

an initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset or
liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

F3R 2014

4. FESHEE@®)

MBI (&)

ENBEEEIFIER BRIEEBIL R
FlEF ARz - BB RENFE
FARm I EEE

BBEER TIERERRFIEE

=

s WBEXZEMAENMALE:
%

s RUPHERBBRAEEER
Z BRI T EAE P
o BIHEERENZER
Bk

e BRUTEIER  HYFEER
ERBMEHERZTA -

RS AT R - FHFEEMBEE
PAGNZ B 75 & B Al i) P TR I 4R TE
R AFER ABE

o IETEBM AE R L T8
A2 BEREAH AL — B
# %

s RYKEER-—WMAMBEEXL
BB Eas A EmEZ—&7
AR 4% A &= B A SR E 2 LB
EENIRERE  ZBEEZ
B RRAFTE AR FER
HEET MAMIHEZER
Tyt AR A ER M 3k

e HEBEABS -HHZHEBRAN
ETAEzZAEHNZ—#n W&
B & FH R 5 39 5% 7t 7R (A
HEAM(BELBBE)EER
BAFER AR ©

BAFEFABRIMBEESED
FERE  MEFAEEL TR
M BRAN SRR - NEEER
ZW RSk ER R R BRI E E TR
BUERIA B SAE ©

BEEEGHERMEBARRAR  7H



Notes t»o thé Cdnsolidated Financial Statements

MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

716

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Financial instruments (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables
and cash and bank balances) are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment, except where the receivables
are interest-free loans without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity dates that the Group has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other
than:

(@) those that the entity upon initial recognition
designates as at fair value through profit or
loss;

(b)  those that the entity designates as available for
sale; and

(c) those that meet the definition of loans and
receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

F3R 2014

Financial instruments (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are traded in an
active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective
interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognised in profit or loss. Other
changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on AFS equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the
dividends is established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of
each reporting period.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been affected.
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MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

18

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Financial instruments (continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence
of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, are assessed for impairment on an
individual basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments that pass the credit
period, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

F3R 2014

Financial instruments (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
similar financial assets. Such impairment loss will not
be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of available-for-sale
debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by
a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

(n)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

80

(n)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Trade and other payables are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would not
be material, in which case they are stated at cost.

Other financial liabilities (including bank borrowing,
amounts due to minority shareholders of subsidiary,
amounts due to directors of subsidiaries and
amounts due to related companies of subsidiaries)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n)

F3R 2014

Financial instruments (continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement and recognises an associated liability. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying
amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference
between the carrying amount allocated to the part that
is no longer recognised and the sum of the
consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated
to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part
that continues to be recognised and the part that is no
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair
values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’'s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

(n)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

82

(o)

(p)

(a)

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises purchase price and
direct expenses that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less all estimated expenses to be incurred
in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hands, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefit
is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)

(s)

F3R 2014

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a
single amount is presented on the face of the
statement of profit or loss, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued
operation.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that
person:

(1) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(2)  has significant influence over the Group;
or

(3) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.

or
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4.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBER @)

(continued)
(s) Related parties (continued) (s)
(i)~ The party is an entity where the following
conditions applies:

(1) the entity and the Group are the members
of the same group;

(2)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of another entity (or of an parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of another
entity);

(3) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(4) one entity is a joint venture of a third
party and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

()  the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

(6)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (i); and

(7)  a person is identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the entity or is a
member of key management personnel
of the entity (or of the parent of the
entity).

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party

transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —Z—NF=A=+—HI-FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t)

F3R 2014

(1)

2)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

For share options granted to employees,
the fair value of services received
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The effect of the change
in estimate, if any, is recognized in profit
or loss with a corresponding adjustment
to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously
recognized in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to suppliers/
consultants

For share options granted to suppliers/
consultants in exchange for goods or
services, they measured at the fair value
of the goods or serves received. The fair
values of the goods or services are
recognized as expenses immediately,
unless the goods or services qualify for
recognition as assets. Corresponding
adjustments have been made to equity
(share options reserve).

(1)

)
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MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. FESTBER @)

(continued)
(t) Share-based payment transactions
(continued)

For cash-settled share-based payments, the
Group measures the goods or services acquired
and the liability incurred at the fair value of the
liability. At the end of each reporting period, the
liability is remeasured at its fair value until the
liability is settled, with any changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss.

(u) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’'s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —Z—NF=A=+—HI-FE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
as at 31 March 2014 was approximately
HK$42,000,000 (31 March 2013: HK$178,718,000).
More details are given in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The carrying values of other intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment when there are any
indications that the carrying value of other intangible
assets may not be recoverable. The Group
considered that no fact and circumstances occurred
which would suggest that the carrying amount of
other intangible assets may exceed its recoverable
amount.

[ltems of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, after taking into
account the estimated residual value. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets
regularly in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expense to be recorded during any
reporting period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s historical experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technologies changes.
The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

F3R 2014

5.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &%

—ENF=A=T—RHILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

The Group has accounted for the contingent
consideration payable in the acquisition of
subsidiaries as detailed in Note 36 in accordance
with the provisions of HKFRS 3 (Revised) —
Business Combinations. The number of shares of the
Company which would be issued as consideration of
the acquisition is subject to the results of the
acquired subsidiaries. The Group determines the
provision to be made in respect of the contingent
consideration based on the fair value of the shares of
the Company at the date of acquisition of the

6. REVENUE

5. BRI HE R G @)
HEAEEMS 2 T ERR (F)

RIRE BB 15 & 2RI 35 (K&
7)) — EBAM 2GR ARECDH
Y 5 36 P 2t e R B 8 12 B) 2 PR =
AREAR - ARAIH T HITESK
E%ﬁf Z B BB AR TP R M
RAFREME ° AEBERBEANRAK
Tﬁﬁ@”&ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%’&ﬁ?E,H\HZ’DHZ%LX&
EFUMBRRARRAEBREZR
ZEREMEE R INER R T - BE L
ZEHARREIEL 2B - RN BIE
AEH T BRER TE"”ZEH fEhA]

subsidiaries and the directors’ best estimate and HAEREERBEATE - N FEEE
weighted probability analysis of the achievement of BEEZWNRENEE )‘5}5/\ %g S HRE
performance requirements in future by the RV E—NWF=ZA=+—H &
subsidiaries. As the process requires input of EEG S AREBAIERERLBD B
subjective assumptions, any changes to the 31,167,000/ 7t( = T — = F:
assumptions can materially affect the provision 52,360,000 7T ) I[E;.‘f‘)\fﬁ'ﬁjé
made. Subsequent gain or loss in fair value is %ﬁ{% °
recognised in profit or loss. As at 31 March 2014,
total provision made in respect of contingent
consideration by the Group amounted to
approximately HK$31,167,000 (2013:
HK$52,360,000) and was included in contingent
consideration payable.
6. W&
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as (a) AEEFAZWEAIWTAT :
follows:
2014 2013
kN T —F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FH&TT
(Restated)
(Fg&=75))
Continuing operations IFERE R
Anti-aging and stem cell technology — #EZ R EHFEE
businesses %
— Sales of healthcare products — HEREER - 17,146
— Stem cell technology business — BT 12,343 1,850
12,343 18,996
Trading business —REZ
— Sales of electronic components — HEEFEM - 3,146
— Sales of cotton yarns — HERY 26,199 17,010
— Sales of metals —HERE 636,837 -
663,036 20,156
Money lending business HEEHE
— Interest income from loans receivables — R 8 R E 2 F 2 A 4,512 -~
679,891 39,152

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. Wiz @)
(b)  An analysis of the Group's other revenue and net (b) AEEFRNZHMWZERKRAFES
income for the year is as follows: T :
2014 2013
il T =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
(Restated)
(F2=E%)
Continuing operations FFERE X
Exchange gain FE 5 U0 % 410
Interest income on: FLEWA -
— Bank deposits —RITHER 40
— Other loans receivables — HAb R E K 7,045
Sundry income MBI A -
7,495
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. UHBER
2014 2013
CE N p——
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Continuing operations FHEEEEE
Interest expense on bank and AR AFRNBEEERITR
other borrowings wholly repayable HEMEEZRBERAYS
within five years -
There was no borrowing cost capitalized during the year FR - BMEEAEMEEEREA(ZE—=

(2013: Nil). F o) o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

8.

90

LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 8.

OPERATIONS

Loss before tax from continuing operations of the Group

has been arrived at after charging:

REBBEERB ZHRBAGE
AEEREFELEXB BB AERD

ORR T 51 &R -

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) 8 T A (BIEESENS)

— Salaries and allowances — Fre MoERL
— contributions to defined contributions — — [A5E 28t ZUR K@ F
retirement benefits schemes FrEIH R

Auditors’ remuneration % EREH BN &

— audit services — BIZRTS

— non-audit services — IEBERIE
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BB MR

equipment e

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

Legal and professional fees (Note)
Operating lease rentals in respect of

rented premises

Carrying amount of inventories sold

HEME - BEREE
2 E518
ERREEER (M)
ERAMEmE K
HEHRS
BEEFEZERERE

Note: During the year, legal and professional fees included equity-settled
share-based payments in aggregated amounts of approximately
HK$2,539,000 granted to consultants of the Company (2013:

HK$5,671,000).

2014 2013
—Lkl —T =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(Restated)

(#e&E7)

26,737 12,605
838 353
27,575 12,958
700 550

120 350
7,500 3,096

- 1,072

7,198 9,966
13,316 5,402
660,449 35,758

BaE: FR-REREXERBEETAARERZ
PARE 2R 77 SRS B R DARR D A BB 2 R A H A
2,539,00087T(=F —=% : 5,671,00087T) °

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

9. INCOME TAX 9. FiEH
Income tax expense in the consolidated statement of RircEaMEME2ERER ZFTEHHA
profit or loss and other comprehensive income represents: SRl
2013
=%
HK$'000
FHIT
(Restated)
(F&&E5))
Current tax BIEAT I8
Hong Kong BB 11
PRC enterprise income tax H B 7 B RIS AR -
Deferred tax (Note 29) RERIE (F77129) -
11
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EEFE R Ty E NG5 FE R 5 7 LA RS
16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits RI166% (T —=4F : 16.5%)TIEH/E -
for the year.
PRC enterprise income tax on the profits arising in the B EMER NIRETRE PR ER
PRC has been provided on the estimated assessable Fom A A BIER 177 REHE B -
profits at the rates prevailing in the PRC.
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to EBRFHAIESEER RFEEMEHEX
the loss before tax as follows: FORNE
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&&E75))
Loss before tax bR AT EE (132,825) (41,801)
Notional tax on loss before tax, calculated BRUIAIE IR 2 BT -
at the tax rates applicable to profits RIERE R AR R A
in the jurisdictions concerned FISHBERAE 23,823 7,226
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBBAZ R & 7,331 4,254
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT H0BR A & R AT AR
and loss not allowable 18 2 s s & (25,562) (3,441)
Tax effect of temporary difference AEREREB o RETE
not recognised (247) (4,580)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses ARG THRIEEEZ
not recognised 2 (6,220) (3,470)
Tax effect of utilization of tax losses SR AMERE AR IEEE Y
not previously recognised mMETE 852 -
Overprovision in previous year BEFE 2B G 11 -
Income tax expense for the year AFEMAEHRAS (12) (11)
There was no income tax recognised in other BMEESHPNEmEEB S MEERNED
comprehensive income and directly in equity (2013: Nil). R(ZE—=F :8|)-
F31R 2014 EEEDRERMTERERAE 91
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10.

92

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 24 July 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of Qinghai Fuli Fenghuangshan Cemetery
Company Limited and Taiyuan City Wufuling Company
Limited, non-wholly owned subsidiaries engaged in funeral
and related businesses, for an aggregate consideration of
HK$33,000,000. As the management of the Company
considered the past performance and future business
prospect of the funeral and related businesses are not
positive, the disposal of the loss making businesses is in
the interest of the Company and its shareholders. The
disposal was completed on 15 October 2013. Details of
assets and liabilities disposed of, and the calculation of
loss on disposal, are disclosed in note 37. As a result of
the disposal, the Group discontinued all of its funeral and
related businesses. In accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, their results were therefore classified as
discontinued operations and the comparative information
are restated accordingly.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

onsolidated Financial Statements

10. SR LLEK

RN-_ZE—=F+A_+mWB X&EHE L
HEMBRLENEREERIEFEB 2R
ENBRrAE 8RB ELAERNDER
REIRKEMRHEERDER AR - R
{8 /433,000,000 7L HRARAIERE
REBZEMEEAEB BT RIBIRKE
BRI NEE N EREBEZER
FAEAXRRREKBRAAZAZE  HEE
HER-_ZE—=F+A+HEHZEK - 5#
HEEENEBZHFBERLEBEBZE
FERKIFEI7RREE - AR EfTHEEIR -
AEBERIEEMERENBBER -
RIFEBBUERELELEST [BIEREZ
IRBEENODRILER] EEER IS
MABKILER  WRERIAEEES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)  10. E#& 1L ¥ (&)

The results of the funeral and related businesses for the HEe-_Z-—NER T =F=ZA=+—
years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: HIEFEBEREBERZEENT
2014 2013
—E-—MF —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Turnover X 26,896 46,961
Cost of sales SHE R (8,817) (11,592)
Gross profit ES! 18,079 35,369
Other revenue and net income H s R FER 4 9
Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities HENHEARIEHEEY
classified as held for sale BEERBE = 5,015 -
Impairment of other receivables Hth fe W 5OIRR B =
written bank - 247
Impairment loss of goodwill EEREEE (8,888) -
Impairment loss of property, plant and W BENRERERS
equipment (50,253) -
Impairment loss of other receivables H o e W IB R BB - (3,882)
Administrative and other operating TR REMEERY
expenses (13,606) (29,309)
Finance costs EURCID RN (1,901) (2,582)
Loss before tax BRBATE R (51,550) (148)
Income tax FTiS®i (571) (1,166)
Loss for the year AEEEIR (52,121) (1,314)
Other comprehensive income HEmermElas
Exchange difference arising from MHEGINEREA BN ERR
translation of foreign operations 2,198 427
Release of translation reserve i E BB A 7 iS5 ARERE 5,
upon disposal of subsidiaries B (6,853) -
Total comprehensive income AEERXHEKFEE
for the year (56,776) (887)
Loss for the year attributable to: EERFEERIE
Owners of the Company AKREEB A (28,584) (647)
Non-controlling interests FEIERGRE RS (23,537) (667)
(52,121) (1,314)
Total comprehensive income AEEREEEKREE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZ SN (34,310) (428)
Non-controlling interests FEfE IR = (22,466) (459)
(56,776) (887)

F3R 2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued)  10. B # 1L %5 (&)

Loss before tax from discontinued operations of the Group AREBRRIEEB ZBBAIEEBEHB T
has been arrived at after charging: MIE=S=S
2014 2013
Ll —T—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) E TR A (BIEEEES)
— Salaries and allowances — Fre MR 10,474
— contributions to defined contributions — — [AlE 2B FURKAR M 5T 214 3%
retirement benefits schemes 599
11,073
Amortization of leasehold land A& 4 b 8 4
Depreciation of property, plant and VI BB MEREITE
equipment 7,796
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWME  WEMREBZER
and equipment 1,038
Impairment loss on property, plant and VI - R R REZRESE
equipment -
Impairment loss on goodwill HERERE -
Carrying amount of inventories sold EERFEZREE 11,591
Cash flows generated from discontinued REBCRILEERESEZEHESRE
operations of the Group
2014 2013
—E-mEF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FHIT
Operating activities K EE) 3,209 (11,847)
Investing activities WEEE) (619) (3,746)
Financing activities REEE) (1,901) 14,824
Net cash inflows/(outflows) BE2mA/ (i) #8 689 (769)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

11. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF 1. XOFHEBABEER
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of the HE-_ZT—WNWF=ZA=+—HBILFEZR
Company for the year ended 31 March 2014 includes a RNEEBANELRGEBEREERAEARA]
profit of approximately HK$44,562,000 (2013: profit of B 75 5 3% N R 1B 2 3% ) 49 44,562,000 7 T
approximately HK$9,829,000) which has been dealt with in ZT—=%F : )m#499,829,000%7T) °

the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s loss Ll BERNRAFEEIE 2 EROT ¢
for the year is as follows:

2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiET
Amount of consolidated profit attributable  FAZRA &8 i& 5% BRI
to owners of the Company dealt with ZANEVEE AL
in the Company’s financial statements AR e 44,562 9,829
Impairment losses recognised on BB RARIREMER L
investment in subsidiaries FEEE (166,000) (14,000)
Impairment losses recognised on RIS B 2~ B FIBRER
amounts due from subsidiaries ZRERE (67,627) -
Impairment losses recognised on 18 [0 3t FE R BT /BB 12 R) R IB RE TR
amounts due from subsidiaries ZRIEEE
written back 1,413 -
Company’s loss for the year RAEARFEEE (187,652) (4,171)
12. DIVIDEND 12. KR
No dividend has been paid during the year nor proposed AEFAWERBEEMEKE - TEEZH
for the year (2013: Nil). AREFRBEMBPE(ZE—=F : &) -

F4 2014 BEEEGHERMEARRAR  9H
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREFXEE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based BRREAEBTHIRE 5 EUETE -

on the following data:

2014 2013
—E-MF —E-=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FH&TT
Loss for the year attributable to owners XA B]#E B AJE(E
of the Company AFEEZEIE
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (123,618) (34,967)
— from discontinuing operations — READKRIEER (28,583) (647)
— from continuing and discontinuing — REFELER
operations B4R ¥ (152,201) (35,614)
Weighted average number of TER 2014 2013
ordinary shares InREF 98 —E—NE —E-=F
Issued ordinary shares at 1 April ROA—BzEETERR EPEMELPEILN 2,492,786,138
Effects of ordinary shares issued EETEBRk e TE ELYRAPEIVA 511,628,767

YRR 3,004,414,905
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

(b)

F3R 2014

Diluted loss per share

13. ZREE @)
(b) BREEESR

The calculation of the diluted loss per share is based

on the following data:

SREEERTRE T BUIRE -

Loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company
— from continuing operations
— from discontinuing operations

— from continuing and discontinuing
operations

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares (diluted)

2014 2013
Lkl —T =F%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THxT FHETT

RARHEE AEL

REEEIE
— RERFBELEER (123,618) (34,967)
— REBRIEES (28,583) (647)
— REBEKLEN

BRI (152,201) (35,614)
TZERNEFHE 2014 2013
(@8 —E—EF —E-=%F

Weighted average number of ordinary

R=A=+—RzEBRK

shares at 31 March
Effects of exercise of share options
Effects of contingent consideration shares

INHEF I8
TTEREREFE
IARREBRD ZFE

YW CEECHEYA 3,004,414,905
179,000,000 173,000,000
249,333,333 249,333,333

4,108,099,015

3,426,748,238

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company's share options granted
under Share Option Scheme A (Note 31) because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the computation
of diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company's share options granted
under Share Option Scheme A (Note 31) because the
exercise price of those options was higher than the
average market price.

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
March 2014 and 2013 has not been disclosed as the
potential shares arising from exercise of the
Company’s share options would decrease the loss
per share of the Group for these years and is
regarded as anti-dilutive.

BE_ZT-NMNEF=A=1+—HIF
B At EEREEE AR ERR
NERERE R8I (31 K
ZRBR R ETTRE - WIIRRREFRR
RZITEESNTFEMHE -

BE_Z—=F=RA=+—RHIF
B it EEREEE RN ERR
RAERRRE AR & F (PRE31) & i
ZBRREEITE - AR ZFER
BZITEESNFOMHE -

HRARREREETEREL ZE
EROERIBE_ZE—NFR-F
—=F=A=t+—HIEFEZEKE
B WA SARBEZE HRAW
BREFELBREEESE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION 14. 7 EEHR

The Group's operating segment information is based on
the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (“CEQ").

During the year, the Group has amended the format of
management information provided to the CEO for the
purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment of the Group. The sale of electronic
components and cotton yarns reportable segment is
reclassified as trading business reportable segment and
the sale of healthcare products reportable segment and
stem cell technology business reportable segment are
aggregated as the anti-aging and stem cell technology
business reportable segment.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(@) Anti-aging and stem cell technology businesses;
(b)  Trading business;
(c)  Money lending business; and

(d) Funeral and related businesses (classified as
discontinued operations at the end of the reporting
period)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
4. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the CEO monitors the results,
assets and liabilities to each reportable segments on the
following basis:

Revenues and expenses are allocated to reportable
segments with reference to revenues generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortization of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for performance evaluation of
reportable segment is profit/(loss) before tax, which is
consistent with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax except
that loss on available-for-sale investments, gain on disposal
of held-for-trading investments, fair value changes, of held-
for-trading investments, impairment of goodwill,
impairment of other receivables, impairment of other
receivables written back, unallocated corporate income
and expenses, finance costs and taxation are excluded
from such measurement.

HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

AEBZRE7RERTIIRE A& E R
B ZEREHTIELERRARART
TR EL ([TTERAREL ) E AT -

RAFE  REBCDEFTRE TITBAR
ZERERNTEA AR D BER M EAE
BERE - HEETHM  BY RSB
BENFERDRFEHEBAIRENE -
i 3H & (R 62 2 an A 3RS 0 1 R B AR MR Bl
EBABMEDBAHRNEERBARK
MERBAIRE DI

REBEEMHHREENEGH - AREZE
ERAIREDEMT

(1) IRERBARRMER
(2) EHEH:
@) MEXERH: K&

4) BEMEBEH(RBEHRIES
BERIERF)

ARED R ST BOR A BT 4 7t

SRR - BIEERD L R KIRF
o THARBATEEERE A RED
BeEE BENEE:

W kA R2EZSNBEEZ WS R
REDBEREEENERBHES 2 K
MAXDBEAHREDHE -

AmESBZRAFEMAENARE
AEBEBRBATGN,(BE) —B2BRBA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ = —NF=HA=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 2 BER (&)
Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible DEEBERIEMBEEREE BEEENR
assets and current assets with the exception of REEE  MIABEATBEERZELEE
intercompany receivables and other corporate assets. b ARIEE °
Segment liabilities include trade and other payables DrEAEE g%’\*ﬁﬁ% EEZFEHQEEM
managed directly by the segments with the exception of HibEWZE e E AT BENZ
intercompany payables and other corporate liabilities. B E A A TE{E °
Information regarding the above segments is reported B Lot B8R 25T -
below:
(a) Segment revenues and results (a) DHEWBEREE
Discontinued
2014 Continuing operations operations

—E-mE BESEER BRILER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Inter- Funeral and
technology Trading lending Segment related
businesses business business elimination Total  businesses
hEZR
B BER
B BA%H BEXE  2BEHHE ] RExH g
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Revenue ey

External customer WRRE ) 663,036 \ 679,891 | 706,787

Inter-segment PER 500 - - -
Total ek 12,843 663,036 , 679,891 26,896 706,787
Segments results PERE (29,883) (14,967) (44,707) 4411 (40,230)
Impairment of goodwill BERE (131,913) (131,913) (8,888) (140,801)
Impairment of property, nE - BREREERE

plant and equipment (50,253) (50,253)
Gain on disposal of assetsand ~ HENEAT{H

liabilities classified as held HEEELER

for sale pdlic: ] 5,015
Fair value change on held-for-rading #EE B2 &

investments ZATEEE 23,140 23,140
Gain on disposal of held-fortrading &5/ EE#RE

investments pdie: 8521 - 8,521
Unallocated corporate income k4 \*E%IW\ 30,736 - 30,736
Unallocated corporate expenses (18,608) - (18,608)
Finance costs - (1,901) (1,901)
Taxation (12) (571) (583)
Loss for the year AEERR (132,837) (52,121)  (184958)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 BE =T —NF=A=+—HIFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Segment revenues and results (continued)

14. 7 EER (&)
(a) DEWRFHREE (&)

Discontinued
2013 (restated) Continuing operations operations
“T-CE(EE)) REMEEN BAILEH
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Inter- Funeral and
technology Trading lending Segment related
businesses business business elimination Total businesses Total
nEER
il BER
BES E5%% HEER  HEEEH aE BEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL Tir T ThAL Titr ThL
Revenue W&
External customer IREE 18,996 20,156 - - 39,182 46,961 86,113
Inter-segment PERH - - - - - - -
Tota 8% 18996 20,156 - - 39,152 16,961 8,113
Segments results NELE (18,938) (3,668) - - 22,606 6,069 (16,537)
Impairment of goodwil HERE (28,208) (28,205) - (28,205)
Impairment of other receivables nE BERGEAE - (3.882) (3882)
Impairment loss of other receivables b UGB EEE
written back | - 2147 247
Fair value change on held-fortrading  #/EEERE
investments LATERS 7319 - 7319
Gain on disposal of heldfor-rading ~ (HEREEERE
investments W& 590 - 590
Unallocated corporate income APEEEUA 24,459 - 24,459
Unallocated corporate expenses APEEERT 23,358) - (23,358)
Finance costs BHER - 2,582) (2,582)
Taxation i) (1) (1) (1,166) (1177)
Loss for the year TEERE #1812 (1,314) (43126)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ = —NF=HA=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 2 BER (&)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) oHEENERS
Discontinued
2014 Continuing operations operations
—Z-mE BESEEE DA LER
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Funeral
technology Trading lending and related
business business business Total businesses
hEER
BRI BER
5% EREK HEER #E HEER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FHR FHT FHR FHR
Segment assets NEEE 28,600 72,829 101,333 202,762 202,762
Goodwill HE 42,000 42,000 42,000
Unallocated assets AOBBE 196,998 196,998
Consolidated assets BAEE 441,760
Segment liabilities PEEE : ; ) 57,079
Unallocated liabilities ROBRE 37,825
Consolidated liabilities GeBE 94,904
Discontinued
2013 (restated) Continuing operations operations
- (LE) SRS R RESIES
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Funeral and
technology Trading lending related
businesses business business Total  businesses Total
RELR
BRI BER
7% BHEK HEXS ek HEET ik

HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$'000
TR TETL TETL TETL TETL TETL

Segment assets PEEE 35,977 46,925 100 83,002 250,779 333,781
Goodwill HE 169,830 169,830 8,888 178,718
Unallocated assets ANBERE 178,720
Consolidated assets FREE 691,219
Segment liabilities PEEE 31,454 297 - 31,751 136,748 168,499
Unallocated liabilities ADERE 58,722
Consolidated liabilities HABE 227,221
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 2 BER (&)
(c) Other segment information (c) HitoBER (&)
Discontinued
2014 Continuing operations operations
—E-MF FESEEH BRIEEK
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Funeral
technology Trading lending and related
businesses business business businesses Total
hRER
BRI BER
% ER%H HEER L HE¥% b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT B FHT FET
Interest income* FlalA* 1 14 3 17
Interest expenses FlERY = = 1,901 1,901
Depreciation and amortization &R & 4,687 ) 6,992 3,886 10,878
Impairment of goodwil HERE 131,913 131,913 8,888 140,801
Impairment of property, plant 9% - BE k% /E
and equipment HE - 50,253 50,253
Income tax expenses FriETRx (1) 571 583
Additions to non-current WREERE
segment assets during FRBNBEE
the year
* Exclude interest income in turnover. * TEFBELEEBZREWA -
Discontinued
2013 (restated) Continuing operations operations
- (L8 SEEEEK BRIEEHE
Anti-aging &
stem cell Money Funeral
technology Trading lending and related
businesses business business Total  businesses Total
nEER
By BER
% BH %% HEEHE it izl ey ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Interest income* FIBYA* - 7 - 7 6 13
Interest expenses FlEfY - - - - 2,582 2,582
Depreciation and amortization 474 [ 8 2,075 - - 2,075 7,800 9,875
Impairment of goodwill BERE 28,025 - - 28,205 - 28,205
Impairment of other At el IE R E
receivables - - - - 3,882 3,882
Impairment of other receivables  E fti fEU3IE
written back RERD - - - - 247 247
Income tax expenses FrEmiAS 11 - - 11 1,166 1,177
Additions to non-current WEEERE
segment assets during IR EEE
the year 218,166 4,188 - 222,354 3,756 226,110
* Exclude interest income in turnover. * TERFELEBZFBUA
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ = —NF=HA=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. 2 BER (&)
(d) Geographical information (d) HEEHR
The Group operates in the People’s Republic of AREBRFEAREMB(FEIES
China (excluding Hong Kong) (“the PRC") and Hong B[R] REBLEE -
Kong.
The following is an analysis of the revenue from LAT%&”«%%%%J FPZINREEZ
external customers by location of operations and W REIREEMEE D 7 IEREE
information about its non-current assets by location EZBERDN
of assets:
Revenue
2014 from external Non-current
—E-mEF customers assets
PIREF
Al G ERBEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Hong Kong BE 16,166 38,273
PRC s 690,621 121,423
706,787 159,696
Revenue
2013 from external Non-current
—EF—= customers assets
HMRE P )
2 Wz FERBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT
Hong Kong aBE 20,168 189,420
PRC ] 65,945 119,180
86,113 308,600
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

14. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 14. D EER (&)
(e) Information about major customers (e) XEFFZER
Analysis of revenue from transactions with a single AT ALAREERZ10% A 28
external customer amount to 10% or more of the —INRBPR G 2 WD -

Group's revenue is as follows:

Operating segment External customer

REDR HREF

Number Revenue

3z

= TE-MF e
(restated) HK$'000 HK$'000
(LBE5) TET FET
(restated)

(#&55)

Anti-aging and stem cell MEERHER
technology businesses S =
Trading business ECES 602,514

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 15. EER T ERaFHEEZHE
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments (i) EEM<
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ENRENARRIZES ZH < W
Company'’s directors are as follows: o
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
2014 and other benefits

—E-MF Fees benefits schemes Total
HeR BIRBER

e HitrEF HE 53 okl

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

THET TET THT TET

Executive Directors BTEE
Mr. Jiang Hongging ZHERE 504 504
Mr. David Lin Kao Kun (Note a) Masks ik (Kita) 263 263
Mr. Lu Zhigiang ETHREE 504 504
Mr. Chu Hon Pong RERBLE = =
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau EHRIREAE - 544
Mr. Cai Da gz 566 566
Ms. Li Mei (Note b) it (Hfzb) 100 100
Non-executive Director EHTES
Ms. Lam Kuo WXzt 1,000 1,000
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth ZEMEE
Mr. Chan Yun Hing B E Lo A
Mr. Gui Qiangfang S5 bt
Mr. Hung Yat Ming AL E
Note a:  Appointed on 23 September 2013. Mita: W-E-=FNA-t=AEZfE-
Note b:  Retired on 1 August 2013. fitetb: R-_FT—ZF\A—REE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

15. EER AR BSHEEZME @)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (i) == (&)
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
2013 and other benefits
—E-=F Fees benefits schemes Total
ek RIRER
e Hitn @ REIESS k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT TET TET
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Jiang Hongging (Note a) ZHRERAE (Hita) 168 - - 168
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EERLE 504 - - 504
Mr. Chu Hon Pong REFRAE - - - -
Mr. Chui Kwong Kau Bk - 492 14 506
Mr. Cai Da gugh i 610 - - 610
Ms. Li Mei (Note b) ik L (ih) 150 - 150
Mr. Lam Wing Tai (Note c) MokFEE (Hitc) - 67 60
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Ms. Lam Kuo (Note a) WXL (Hita) 250 - - 250
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth By 20 - - 0
Mr. Chan Yun Hing (Note b) BOBES £ (HaFb) 50 - - 50
Mr. Gui Qiangfang (Note b) KR A (Hfzth) 50 - - 50
Mr. Hung Yat Ming (Note d AL (Hizta) - - - -
Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Note e) EEREAE (Hiite) 40 - - 40
Dr. Wong Yun Kuen (Note e) HHEBL (fite) 40 - N 40
1,952 549 17 2,518
Note a:  Appointed on 1 December 2012, Mita: RZZE——F+-_A—BEZE-
Note b:  Appointed on 21 September 2012. MtaEb: W-F——FhNA=-+—HEZF-
Note c:  Resigned on 1 December 2012. Mite: RZE——F+-A—BEE-
Note d: Appointed on 28 March 2013. MtiFd: W=F—=F=RA=+/\HEZF-
Note e:  Resigned on 21 September 2012. Mite: RZZE——FNAZ+—HEME-
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &%

15. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

—ENF=A=T—RHILFE

EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(i)

(ii)

106 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
the loss of office (2013: Nil).

There was no emoluments waived by any directors
during the year.

The directors consider that they are the only key
management personnel of the Group and details for
their compensation have been set out above.

Five highest paid employees

During the year, the five highest paid individuals
included 2 directors (2013: three), details of whose
emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining non-director highest paid individual are
as follows:

(i)

(ii)

15. EEROERSFEEZME @)

EEME (&)

RAFER  AEFETESL NS T
ERIEEEBIMANEBR TS| 1R
EMAKRER 2 B4l EAREEE
TE-=F M)

FRAABEANEEHEMNS -
EXZRR RERAEEEZMLIEE
BAE AEKEFHEZFRBERLE
SRS o

hEBRSHES
TR ABRAFALEBEMA(Z

T-—F:ZR)EF FERS
E2HBERLEXED - BT HREH

FEEATZBEWT :

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes

e REMEN
R ET IR

2014 2013
bk T
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
4,125 1,606

39 6

1,612

Emoluments of the non-director highest paid
individual(s) fell within the following bands:

P EEEATZHEN T T5IE
# :
Number of individual(s)
A

2014
=ik — T —

HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 8 LE
1,500,000 % 7T
3,000,001 BLE

3,500,000 7T

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

T2 1,000,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BERRE

The Group KEHF
Property, plant and equipment
0% BERRR
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction  Leasehold
Buildings  improvements  equipment Vehicles Total  in progress land Total
G %8

By BREE e HE B8 GRIE  BELY 2
HK$000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR TERL TR ThER TERL

Cost: A
At 1 April 2012 RZE-ZEMF-8 94,857 48472 5533 5019 153,881 1,488 293 155,662
Additions RE 3,19 - 4,266 5,706 13,167 - - 13167
Acquisition of subsidlaries B AT - 9,027 6,692 54 16,243 - - 16,243
Transfer &2 - 1484 - - 1484 (1,484) - -
Disposal i - (1,722 (1,595) (746) (4,063) - - (4,063)
Exchange adjustments B 31 182 2 37 620 ] 1 617
At31 March 2013and at 1 April 2013 R-E-zF=f=1-0k
“5-ZERA-A 98434 57443 14,916 10539 181,332 - 294 181,626
Additions RE - 4,388 1,666 243 8476 - - 8476
Acquisition of subsidiaries WENBAA - 515 3% - 850 - - 80
Transfer to assats held fo sale BETH{ERELE (98434) 48.417) (4,681) (3980 (155512 - (294 (155,806)
Disposal HE - (1,150) (661) - (1.811) - - (1811)
Exchange adjustments RS - 1) 9 69 i - - 7
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-RE=A=1-A - 12778 11,583 9,051 3412 - - 412
Accumulated amartization, depreciation SiBH TERAE:
and impairment:
At 1 April 2012 R-F--FWA-H 22,588 14,929 2,635 3,108 43,260 - 263 43503
Charge forthe year FERR 4407 380 1743 10891 - 108
Disposal HE - (684) (872) (397) (1953 - - 1,993)
Exchange adjustments B 116 n 9 12 208 - - 208
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 R-EF-ZE=A=+-BR
“Z-ZFRA-H 21131 18,140 3515 3,620 52,406 - 267 b2,673
Impairment WE 32,146 16,881 %7 259 50,253 - - 50,253
Charge for the year EEER 2158 5232 2,454 1540 11,384 - 2 11,386
Transfer to assats held o sale SRTHEEELE (61,435 (35.407) (325 (3420 [(103519) - (269 (103,787
Disposal i - (383) (262) - (645 - - (645)
Exchange adjustments B - () 1 3 3 - - 3
At31 March 2014 R-E-ME=F=1-H - 4,461 3424 1,99 9,883 - - 9,883
Net carmying amount; REFE:
At 31 March 2014 R-E-RE=R=1-A - 8317 8,159 7,053 23,529 - - 23,529
At31 March 2013 W-E-Z£Zf=1-A 71,303 39,303 11401 6,919 128,926 - 2 128,953
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - BB RRE (#)

(continued)
The Company RKAT
Furniture,
fixtures, and
equipment
& HE
REE
HK$'000
FHIT
Cost: %NE
At 1 April 2012 R-—E——#€mA—H 1,582
Written off Hss (1,440)
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—HK
—E—=F1mA—AH 142
Addition NE -
At 31 March 2014 rR-—Zf—m&E=4=4—H4 142
Accumulated impairment and ZEPRERRERE
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2012 N-E——FmMA—H 505
Charge for the year FEEHR 275
Written off g (720)
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 R-ZEBE—=F=A=+—8K
—E—ZFMA—H 60
Charge for the year FEEA 33
At 31 March 2014 r-—f—-p@&=-4=+-8/ 93
Net carrying amount IREVFE -
At 31 March 2014 R-—ZE—mE=A=+—AH 49
At 31 March 2013 WZE—=F=A=+—8H 82

108 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
The Group
Licences
A%
SRR
HK$'000
FET
Cost: DN
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and NR-TBE——FWA—H —E—=%
at 1 April 2013 =A=+—BER=-ZE—=FmMA—H -
Acquisition of subsidiary W EERT B A A 62,000
At 31 March 2014 R-—F—pm&=/4=+—-H 62,000
Accumulated amortisation and ZETE I MOREES
impairment losses:
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and RZE—Z—FWMA—H ZF—=F
at 1 April 2013 =A=+—RBER=-ZE—=FmMA—H -
Charge for the year FEEH -
At 31 March 2014 RZE—NF=A=+— Ei—
Net carrying amount: BREVFE
At 31 March 2014 R-E—WE=A=+—H 62,000
At 31 March 2013 WZE—=F=A=+—H -
The intangible assets represent 3 exclusive licences on 3 B EERANEENEE ARTYEWE
patents granted by the holders to a subsidiary acquired NEIBEHB=—EHENZ =MEFEE - &R
during the year. Details of acquisition of intangible assets WEEH B A T EEEE & E 7 S EEHINK
through acquisition of subsidiary are set out in note 33. ¥33 0
Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the iR ET R A TN ETREHUEG .
remaining useful lives of the exclusive licences. TER o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17. B EE (@)
Details of the useful life of the exclusive licences are as ERER 2 FEAFEFBET
follows:
Expiry date of
exclusive licence
Particulars of patent granted to subsidiary
RTIMBARZ
BERFE EREREIEE
Method for constructing pancreatic stem —EBREANERENREESHAREN 25 November 2031
cell line from human insulin and BEEABESZSMAR LR E —E=—%F
differentiating to insulin secretion cell +—A=-+HH
Injectable temperature sensitive gel used — —71& A ER (18 B4 48 10 June 2031
for filling and repairing damaged tissues AT SR U B —E=—F
~NATH
Injection gel containing submicron — RS A KRB R E B ERE 10 June 2031
hyaluronic acid microspheres and JITHNR B ERME A —E=—14F
preparation method ~A+AH
No amortization is recognized for the year as the exclusive EE AR A B A R BUS EF R R B A
licenses have not yet been in the location and condition BEEEBZRBTIALE 2 VEBKRY - Bt
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the NEZIW RIS o

manner intended by management.
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18. GOODWILL 18. &
2014 2013
Lkl —T =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Cost: ¢ AN
Balance at beginning of year FEE 208,144 10,071
Acquisition of subsidiaries U B B B 2 =) 4,083 198,035
Exchange adjustments RS - 38
Balance at end of year FRES 212,227 208,144
Accumulated impairment: Z2EHRE -
Balance at beginning of year FU s (29,426) (1,207)
Impairment recognised in the year FANEZRRE (140,801) (28,205)
Exchange adjustments b H F R - (14)
Balance at end of year FREH (170,227) (29,426)
Carrying amount at end of year FRIEMEE 42,000 178,718

The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment) was allocated to cash generating units as
follows:

B IREE IR RARE) DOEET
FIBR e EL RN

Funeral and related business operations 7%t X fHFI %75
— Qinhai Fuli Fenghuagshan — HaENBEEL
Stem cell technology business operations  # 40 BT 75

Funeral and related business operations

During the year, impairment of goodwill of approximately
HK$8,888,000 was recognised upon the classification of
assets and liabilities of subsidiaries as held for sale before
the date of completion of disposal of subsidiaries on 15
October 2013.

For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test in
last year, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit was determined based on value-in-use calculation
which used cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using the estimated rates stated below. The
growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth
rate for the business in which the cash-generating unit
operated.

F3R 2014

2014 2013
—E—MmE —F—=

HK$000 HK$'000

FRET THET

- 8,888

42,000 169,830

42,000 178,718
WAFE - EERIE#8,888,000/8 7L 7
—E =+ AT AHANEMBAREK
B D BB AR 2 BERAER#R

RFFEHE -

R E-—FEBEBRENANS REEL
Bfizalme s HiREFEAEERETE -
WHRBRREEE A BFHMERAE
PIERZEREERE BBAFHIZAER
ERERA T IMAFH L R el - R XS
fﬁ%@iﬁﬁ&i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%%Z%ﬂﬂfﬁ’ﬂ
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE& (&)

Funeral and related business operations
(continued)
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

Cash-generating unit

REELEN Eilk S

Qinghai Fuli BEEN
Fenghuangshan BB

159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited
and its subsidiaries (“159 Group”)

For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test,
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
determined based on value-in-use calculation which uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated rates stated below. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the cash-generating unit operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:
Cash-generating unit

REELEN ERE
2014

SE-RE e

%

Stem cell technology business B4R R £ 7

According to the result of review of the calculation, the
management determined that impairment loss of
approximately HK$127,830,000 was recognised because
the recoverable amount with reference to the value in use
was calculation estimated to be less than the carrying
amount. It was mainly due to the number of customers
recorded in the past year did not reach the expected target
projection.

At the date of completion of acquisition in last year, the
management of the Company had carried out impairment
assessment on the carrying amount of goodwill arising on
the acquisition of stem cell technology business based on
the business valuation prepared by Roma Appraisals
Limited adopted for acquisition purpose. According to the
valuation, the fair value of the stem cell technology
business was approximately HK$333,000,000, of which
approximately HK$169,830,000 was attributable to the
interest held by the Group, resulting in an impairment loss
of HK$28,205,000 was recognized in the profit or loss
immediately after the completion of acquisition.

112 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Gross margin

Gross margin

AECAEERAZIZRK

Growth rate Discount rate
BRE B %
2013
—T-=F
%

1594 BEEE(FR)ERATARAE
MEAT([1595%H])
FFEEEERENANE  ReEELEN
2R WEl SR N FEREETEET M
CERBEHFRBRECEREMRAE LT
FHRBRERSE RS RETEE - B
BRFHZESAZ8EA NAGET T =X
- R ER A SBBREELBMAR
BEBZRPFHERER -

i

AEERBERBZEIZM/RR

Growth rate Discount rate
BRE B %
2014 2014 2013

“E-F e b Sy T ——

% % %

40 . 19.6

BEBEAEFNZERER  TEBETHER
1B B8 20127 830,000/ 7 © RA ALK
ZEAEESL Y AkESEESDRE
M1E ° tt)}zgdaﬂiiﬁﬁfﬁ%zﬁ/\%
W ARZEERTERR B IZTEA o

REFURBE KA ARaEEEBEIR
BEBSHEEFEAERARRKEN S HR
ZEBGHE BKERERBITESES
ZEBREEETRAEN G - REMGE
SRR T 2 TS 2 A F{E 49 A 333,000,000
B AEBEEBEESEGLGESY
169,830,000/8 7t  EE ZRE U R TR A TE
18 T FERRURL (B B9 18 28,205,000 8 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (continued) 18. BE (&
Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Bio-Technology Limited I B% jJ LRI AERAT(ESD ]
(“Sheng Li”)
Goodwill in the approximately amount of HK$4,083,000 AEENA) 4,083,000 78 T 2 = A A Uk B AR
was recognised upon the acquisition of Sheng Li during DR o uyﬁ§§$f|§?§5jz)‘5/\\\ﬂ1q‘§jr_34 °

the year. Details of acquisition are set out in note 34.

For the purpose of the annual goodwill impairment test, MFEBERBENANST  BeEEEM
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is Al EeBERIEBEFERERETFE 0 W
determined based on value-in-use calculation which uses RiZREREMNEC AF RV RBEHEME
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved AzReRE - BAAFH RS RER
by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows LA O fh ettt R - I ER AN =HB
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the ReEABUMKEER s REFHER
estimated rates stated below. The growth rate does not Ko

exceed the long-term average growth rate for the business
in which the cash-generating unit operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: STEERBERBZTERE
Cash-generating unit Gross margin Growth rate Discount rate
HeELEN EYi[ES BRE BRE

2013

Stem cell technology business #4127

According to the result of review of the calculation, the RIBFTEFZEHER  EREATHER
management determined that impairment loss of /WTEJ%TEZ’JAL 083,000/87T - RA AKLL2E
approximately HK$4,083,000 was recognised, because the EREEERL Y ThESERSOREET
recoverable amount with reference to the value in use was (ERE

estimated to the less than the carrying amount.

Management determined the budgeted gross margin EEERELBARELEYHMEBERE ZTE
based on past performance and its expectation for market HETHEEENR . AR ERETED
development. The growth rates used are consistent with ZNIEA|— 2 o P AR EEEETIEEJF&HIE\
the forecasts in industry trends. The discount rates used 7 e MLAB R 9 48 2 e A ke
are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
segments.
19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RIB AR ZIRE
The Company
ARATH
2014 2013
—Z—mF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETMRD - IRAG A 273,439 224,780
Provision for impairment losses BEEERE (220,000) (54,000
53,439 170,780
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 HAEEEENEEFEELEETERATE Y
March 2014, which materially affected the Group's results ARABIEEMBARR_Z—WF=A
or net assets, are set out in note 43 to the consolidated =+ —AZFHBERGRE P ERERMFE4S o

financial statements.
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20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

20. T

Unlisted equity investment in PRC,
at cost (Note (i)
Exchange adjustment

RAEZIE ERBRAKRE -
RS (FFEE (i)
PE 5 SR

Unlisted equity investment in Spain,
at cost (Note (ii))

RS 2 F EMBRAERE -
RS (B (i)

HERE

The Group and the Company

KEERAERQT
2014 2013

—E-E —F—=

HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
925
4
929
929

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The unlisted investment was designated as available-for-sale
investment and has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The
unlisted investment is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that the fair value
cannot be measured reliably. It was derecognised during the year as
a result of the disposal of funeral and related businesses.

The unlisted investment was designated as available-for-sale
investment and has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate. The
unlisted investment is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant that the directors are of the opinion that the fair value
cannot be measured reliably.

21. INVENTORIES

Pifet -

(i)

(ii)

21. B

FLMmERBEREEAAHHEERE  WEETEH
HEEX mReBATEGEEER &
ERRATHEL TGRSR - BRI LHRER
PRASBAER 25HRESIRR - AR E HEEZE R
X MOCRAFEBUERRERRE -

FLMmERBEREEAAHHEERE  WEETEH
HEEX mReBATEGEEER &

Materials and consumables R BB FE S
Finished goods BURN SR

EFRB/DTEATHEASEE - HOELTRER
B ASRAE ] REHREFIER
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—NNEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FA&T
184 17
10,979 47,624
11,163 47,641
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

22. FEWHE R BIRRIE

The Company
N
2014 2013
el —= ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT

356,702 227,642

(73,219) (73,219)
(67,627) -
1,413 -

(139,433) (73,219)

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B k08
Accumulated impairment losses: ZFHREEE :
Beginning balance FAHER
Provided during the year F RS

Written back [

Ending balance FREH

Carrying amounts IREE

217,269 154,423

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and
repayable on demand. Except for an amount due from a
subsidiary bearing interest at the annual rate of 10.5%
(2013: Nil), all amounts due from subsidiaries are interest-
free.

23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

& W PR /B8 X B kIR A IR R IR B oR(E
B BRERFMEI05E(ZZE—=F: &)
it B 2 ALK B X R BIR SN - P B FE AR
BRAFEHR/EE °

23. EWIRA R E M EWRIE

The Group The Company
r5HE NN

2014 2014 2013

Ll —= =Ll T —F

Trade receivables JEUBR 3R
Deposits and prepayments e RN FRIA
(Note i) (Hfai)
Loan receivables (Note ii) FEWE TR (KTt i)
Other receivables H e U ROR
Amounts due from related company J& U fff 2 A 7] fg 8t A 7
of subsidiary (Note iii) 2 FOB (K aFiii)

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

F3R 2014

HK$'000 ' MO HKS'000
7% el ¢ IRk

1,071

10,094 135,918
120,088 57,329
22,342 15,034

55,000
2,451

21,678

153,595 242,945 25,701

EUWIR G B - REBEBER U FEH
R A TR
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. EWERAR K H A FE R TE ()
(continued)
The management of the Group monitors the recoverable NEEEIEBEREWEE Y Al @m4sE
amount of the trade debts and considers adequate ﬁ%ﬁ%gﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁiTTﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬂﬁi
impairment loss is made for irrecoverable amount, if AR - B ERE LY Ak ERE
necessary. In determining the recoverability of a trade B $$\g%r§g B EEE A

receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of trade receivable from the date credit was initially

EREPRUIEBURERZEEERALY

&4 °

granted up to the end of the reporting period. iﬁ&ﬂ %)

At the end of the reporting period, there are no trade RBEIR - HECD B ERE 2’

receivables past due and not impaired. WHRSK ©

The Group offers credit terms to its customers ranging AREFEREFERPZEEHEN TR EH

from cash on delivery to 90 days. An analysis of trade =90 [ o 3% [ HI 2 51| > fE Uk BE SRR gt

receivables by age, presented based on the invoice date, SHIT :

. 7]

is as follows:

The Group The Company
N | AT
2014 2014
=Ll = —2-|mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FTEx

0-30 days 0£30H 1,030

31-60 days 31£260H 21 -

Over 60 days 60 HEA £ 20 13,086

1,071 13,086
Notes: Bfat
(i) As at 31 March 2013, deposits and prepayments included: 0} RZZE—=F=A=+—H [ MBENFEBIE
(a) a refundable deposit of HK$36,600,000 paid in connection (a) REERE " FREEMIMNZARES
with a proposed acquisition of an entity, details of the 36,600,000 7T * B BEZEKIE 2 FBHAER
proposed acquisition are set out in the Company's RIHEAZZ—=F=-A=1T/\HZRAER : &
announcement dated 28 March 2013; and

(b) trade deposit in an aggregate amount of approximately (b) &l &4 $£#181,906,0008 7T ©
HK$81,906,000.

(ii) As at 31 March 2014, loan receivables were unsecured, bearing (i) RZFE—NF=A=+—0 " BHRERREEF  &KE
interest at the fixed rates of 12% to 24% (2013: 8% to 15%) per E@ﬂ"? NREZE24E(ZZ—=F:8EZ15E):tE
annum and repayable within 12 months. Except for a loan receivable MZER12E A REE - —TEUZE T ERRmREEE
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$22,088,000 was #9/%22,088,000 8 7T 2 R E FAIBRIN - EETKLE
secured by parcels of lands. The directors assessed the collectability ERAZBEERCHERRREERR  REKERZ
of loans receivables from time to time individually with reference to A AW Bl E 1T IE R RE A ©

borrowers’ past collection history and current creditworthiness.

(i)~ The amounts due from a related company of subsidiary were (i)  EWMB AR Z BB AR ZREAEEF R RER
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. ERER -
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24. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 24. FEEERE
The Group and
The Company
AEBRAEAT
2014 2013
—E-MEF —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Equity investments listed in REALIMZRAEE
Hong Kong, at fair value (Note) NEE M) 62,876
Note: The fair values of listed investments are determined on the basis of Bfet - EWEREZAFEDNRBERRABTEEST -
quoted market price at the end of the reporting period.
25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25. RERRITHEER
Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group ReMRTEBBREASEMFRS LR
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of FHH A=A AR 2 52 BRRI T -
three months or less.
26. BANK BORROWING 26. IR1TIEE
The Group The Company
KEE RAF
2014 2013 2014 2013

L T =7 il — T =F
GUCOIIE  HKS'000 EEGTCHOIIE  HKS$'000
TER TAT FER TR

Bank borrowing RITIEE
As at 31 March 2013, the bank borrowing was secured by NZE—=F=A=+—0 " RITEES
personal guarantee provided by a director of subsidiary, LA— BB AR EEATIREEAEZRER
bearing interest at the fixed rate of 10.2% per annum and o REEFFRI02EE AR+
was repayable within twelve months. The effective MARNEERE - RITEBEEZERFNEXRA
interest rate on the bank borrowing was 10.2% per 10.2]E »
annum.

27. AMOUNT DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES 27. BB A RRIE
The amount due to subsidiaries is unsecured, interest-free ERWBARREAEER 2ERARK
and repayable on demand. BR(EE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28. EN R R HEMESKIE
The analysis of trade payables by age based on the invoice A E A2 T BN EZBESB O T
date is as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE AR
2014 2014
Ll —= —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERL FHET
Trade payables FETBE SR 347
Other payables and accruals HibpE N ZOA R EE B A 33,140
Amounts due to minority FERTB B ATV SR e
shareholders of subsidiary (Note) > =IE (ffEE) 30,000
Amounts due to directors of ENABEATEEY
subsidiaries (Note) =78 (BEE) 250
Amounts due to related companies g~ fif & A 7] B3 HE A 7]
of subsidiaries (Note) = SIE ()
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods is HEETER 2P EEEA120H -
120 days.
The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: JERTBRFR Z BREE D AT RO -
The Group The Company
s 3 VNN
2014 2014
“E-MF s —E-MF
HK$’000 ' HK$’000
FHT BT FHT
0-30 days 0£30H 26
31-60 days 31260H 2
Over 60 days 60 HEA E 319
Note: The amounts due to minority shareholders, directors and related Mfat - FERHE AR DR - EF KA R ZFIE
companies of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no REER - B RERETENRES -

fixed terms of repayment.
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. EABIE
Deferred tax assets BEEBBREE
Unused
tax losses
REABIEEHE
HK$'000
THETT
At 1 April 2012 R-E——FmA—H 8,131
Net change BEpEE 1,287
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 N_BE-—=F=A=+—HK
RZZE—=FWA—H 9,418
Net change BE) R 9,355
Eliminated on disposal of assets and HEREHEEERABREHE
liabilities held for sale (5,227)
Utilised =EEH (852)
At 31 March 2014 R-E—NE=A=+—H 12,694
No deferred tax asset has been recognized in respect of 3 45 PR A DR R OR 2 2R SR ) SRR T 58 0B
the tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit BREREERBEAE -
streams.
Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
B IE T
HK$'000
THETT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZE——#H—H 15
Net change FE)FE 74
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 R-EBE—=F=ZA=+—HK
R_ZE—=FMHA—H 89
Net change B E)FEE 86
At 31 March 2014 R-_ZE—NF=A=+—H 175
No deferred tax liability has been recognized due to the mﬁffﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁjfﬁﬂ%%%HEE%E?ﬁi
temporary differences which will result in a liability to be A2 B EEmERETRARR -
payable in the foreseeable future are immaterial.
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed RETPERXEIE - B=FF\F—
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the ﬁ o H iiLE i W%ﬁ ﬂ,ﬁyﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬂi@@g
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred ”EHX%%@@%E?E Bi o mR ZE%;@EHE i
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated %@%BTT%%EZHW% H?H?iﬁgﬁf\?%
financial statements in respect of temporary differences #5281 & A D E&%ﬁ’%fp E@L%LE
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries FRRER & Il B 15 2 MG 2 B0 AR & B 75 R

as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of FAELIEE IR -
the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Number of
shares Amount
BHEE &5
'000 HK$'000
T FET
Authorised (ordinary shares of JEE (IR HEE0.048 T2
HK$0.04 each) LiER)
At 1 April 2012, 31 March 2013 and 2014 HR-Z——FMA—H -
—E=FR-TNF
—A=+—H 5,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (ordinary shares of B 21T R4 (SREE
HK$0.04 each): 0.048 0z EEAR) -
At 1 April 2012 N-ZE——FmHA—H 2,492,786 99,712
Issue of new shares under share placing 1B IEA%D BC & 21T LD
(note a) (Ktzta) 498,500 19,940
Issue of consideration shares (note b) FTRERD (BaEb) 300,667 12,026
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 R-ZE—=F=ZA=+—HK
R_ZT—=FmA—H 3,291,953 131,678
Issue of new shares under share placing 1R IER (D B &3 1T (D
(note c) (Btatc) 658,380 26,335
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—NWFE=A=+—H 3,950,333 158,013
Notes: Btat -
(a) On 18 July 2012, 498,500,000 shares of the Company were issued (a) R-Z——F+ A+ /\H 498,500,000 % A&~

to placees at a total consideration of HK$99,700,000, of which
HK$19,940,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$79,760,000 was credited to share
premium account.

(b) On 18 September 2012, 300,666,667 shares of the Company were (b)
issued to Add Talent Holdings Limited’s nominees to acquire 51%
equity interest in 159 Regenerative Medicine Group (H.K.) Limited
(the “Target Company”) at a total consideration of HK$184,000,000,
of which HK$12,026,666.68 was credited to share capital account
and the net balance after expenses of HK$72,160,000 was credited
to share premium account.

(c) On 29 August 2013, 658,380,000 shares of the Company were issued (c)
to placees at a total consideration of HK$102,557,000, of which
HK$26,335,000 was credited to share capital account and the net
balance after expenses of HK$76,222,000 was credited to share
premium account.
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AR LAKE B 99,700,000 78 7T 21T FAEECA »
H. 719,940,000 & T B F ARRAER - BRI
1% 2 &5 8% 58 79,760,000 7T BI 2 51 A B9 %
B8R -

WZZE—=%AA+/\H 300,666,667 A2 7
&5 LA 48 4R (B 184,000,000 78 7T 217 T 38 242 i
BRATIZRBA  NE159BEBE2EE (T
B)BRAR(BEAR]) Z51% KA fEs &
7 12,026,666.68 %8 7T B 5T A PR AN BR - i H1BR B
18 2 K5 84F 72,160,000 L A 2 5 AR
HER o

RZFT—=F)/\BZ=+H - 658,380,000 %7
N ERLD A K18 102,557,000 78 7T # 1T F AR
A+ E 26,335,000 8 7T B AT ARRAER - mHIER
B 1% 2 4594 % 5876,222,00078 T B E 5t AR
B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —Z—NF=A=+—HI-FE

31. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME 31. BiR#EE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 4
August 2010 and the Stock Exchange granting approval of
the listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be
issued under the Share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme B") on 17 November 2010, the Company has
adopted the Share Option Scheme B to replace the share
option scheme adopted on 1 February 2002 (the “Share
Option Scheme A").

(a) Share Option Scheme A

The Company’'s Share Option Scheme A was
approved on 1 February 2002 pursuant to a written
resolution of the Company. The purpose of the
Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options
to selected individuals to subscribe for shares in the
Company as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, invite any full-time or part-time employee
of the Company or any member of the Group,
including any director of any member of the Group
and any advisor or consultant (in areas of technical,
financial or corporate managerial) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe
for the shares in the Company for a consideration of
HK$1 per each lot of share options granted.

The Share Option Scheme A was terminated on 17
November 2010. No further options will be granted
thereunder, but the provisions of the Scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of the
Options granted prior to its termination or otherwise
as may be required in accordance with the provisions
of the Scheme. The option period shall not be less
than 3 years and shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of acceptance of option. There is no minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.
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31. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

(a)

(b)

122 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Share Option Scheme A (continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme A must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue unless approval from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted and to be granted to each individual
in any twelve-month period up to and including the
date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue at the date of grant unless approval from
Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the
specified option period. The exercise price shall be
determined by the directors of the Company, and
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Company's shares as stated on GEM's daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of the Company's shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

Share Option Scheme B

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme B is to
enable the Company to provide incentive to
participants with the opportunity of participating in
the growth of the Company by acquiring shares in
the Company and may, in turn, assist in the attraction
and retention of talents who have made contributions
to the success of the Company.

Given that the Share Option Scheme A has expired
on 14 January 2012, the Directors considered that it
is in the interest of the Company to adopt the Share
Option Scheme B in compliance with Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules to replace the old scheme.

The option period shall not be less than 3 years and
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
acceptance of option. There is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an
option within 28 days from the date of grant.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under both Share
Option Schemes involving the issue or grant of
options must not exceed 30% of the Company's
shares in issue from time to time.
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(b)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —Z—NF=A=+—HI-FE

31. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued) 31. BRETE (®)
Details of the share options granted by the Company are ARARAEE ZBERERBOT -
as follows:
Closing
share price
Number of Exercise immediately
Share share options price  Fair value at before the
Options  Date of grant Exercise period granted per share grant date date of grant
R R 1%
g REH R A HA
BRE R B fTHEHm BREZA BRITFEE BHZLATYE ZWHE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
A 26 April 2010 26 April 2010 to 120,376,000 0.2760 0.0743 0.241
& “E-TEMAZFRA 25 April 2013
—“T-TFNA-_+HE
_f——iﬂﬂ +RA
B 18 November 2010 18 November 2010 to 173,000,000 0.1670 0.0466 0.153
Z “2-ZF+-A+NRH 17 November 2013
-z T$+ ATN\BE
ZE-=F+—A+tH
C 3 January 2014 3 January 2014 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.04315 0.290
A —T-ME—-H=H 2 January 2015
“T-MF-A=RAZE
—“E-1¥-AZH
D 3 January 2014 3 January 2015 to 90,000,000 0.4000 0.06998 0.290
T —Z-WFE-A=H 2 January 2016
_i_ﬁi_ﬂ HZ
7 /\E H E
The fair value of the share options granted HK$2,539,000 2R A 2 A F(E2,539,0008 2R
was recognized as share option expense of during the FRNERAEBRERAI(ZZE—=4"
year. (2013: HK$5,671,000). 5,671,000 7C) °
The fair value of equity-settled share options granted FAREHUERAXEE 2 BREQNTE
during the year was estimated as at the date of grant, R B H LA:LE‘E%%&EF‘W%EU&% :
using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into BEHREEERLBEREZ GG - %
account the terms and conditions upon which the share B TFTEMmASBEDOT :
options were granted. The significant inputs into the
Model were as follows:
Scheme A B Cc D
i H Z A T
Share Price (HK$) as at the date of grant R A RE (BT 0.241 0.153 0.290 0.290
Exercise Price (HK$) I6EE(ET) 0276 0.167 0.400 0.400
Expected volatility BHR R 103.56% 94.013% 65.859% 63.606%
Risk-free interest rate EE R E 1.255% 0.716% 0.205% 0.333%
Life of option B 3years 3 years & 1 year 1yearsE
The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the i‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁ%rﬁiﬁimaﬁﬁ AR R B 2
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may R BEZBAT—CERERER - TE
also not necessarily be the actual outcome. No other Hjﬁﬁﬂx%]lﬁiﬁi\@ﬁgﬁrﬂ\ FEZEE

feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

31. SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME (continued)

Details of the Company’s share options outstanding under

31. BRAEE )
4 9 R 2 B R R AR A BT T R AT 6

share option scheme during the year are as follows: g =2 I N
Number of
share options Number of
outstanding Cancelled/ share options
Share at the Granted Exercised  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
Options Exercise beginning during during during during  attheend
Scheme Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year theyear  of the year
ERE i ENERTE i EREs/ ERERTE
iE BHBH TRE  <BREHE E20g b EnfrR IS ErkM 2EREHA
HKS
BT
2014
ZE-|E
Consultants A 26 April 2010 120,376,000 (120,376,000)
Hf i S s
Consultants B 18 November 2010 173,000,000 (173,000,000)
Hf Z Z5-2E+-AT)\A
Consultants  C 3 January 2014 90,000,000 90,000,000
Hf A “E-mF-A=H
Consultants D 3 January 2014 90,000,000 90,000,000
Hf T “E-mF-A=H
293,376,000 180,000,000 (293,376,000) 180,000,000
Number of
share options Number of
outstanding Cancelled/ share options
Share at the Granted Exercised  terminated Lapsed  outstanding
Options Exercise beginning during during during during atthe end
Scheme  Date of grant price of the year the year the year the year theyear  of the year
BEE ] EBRIE ) Y | ERERAE
iEl RHEH e ZERERR ERR R BE FREM CBREZE
HKS
BT
2013
Consuliants A 26 April 2010 0.276 120,376,000 - - - - 120,376,000
B i ZE-ZEMACTRA
Consultants B 18 November 2010 0.167 173,000,000 - - - - 173,000,000
Bf Z “E-EET-ATNE
293,376,000 - - - - 293,376,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
180,000,000 (2013: 293,376,000) share options
outstanding under the schemes, which represented
approximately 4.56% (2013: 8.91%) of the Company's

ordinary shares in issue as at that date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ = —NF=HA=+—HILFE

32. RESERVES 32. f#fE
(a) The Group (a) AEE
Share Special  Translation Share Options  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRVEE RBRIRE BERE  BRERE B8y ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET TEL TEL

At 1 April 2012 RZE--EMA—-H 300,302 (39,998) 4,035 9,774 (95,842) 178,271

Loss for the year rEERE - - - - (35,614) 35,614)
Exchange difference arising on AE BN EK 2 ES 28
translation of foreign

operations - - 438 - - 438
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2EWHAE

for the year - - 438 - (35,614) (35,176)
Issue of ordinary shares under  BERHEERTLRER

share placing 76,165 - - - - 76,165
Issue of ordinary shares for ~ BEUEEIIE AT

acquisition of subsidiaries BTERMR 72,110 - - - - 72,110
Recognition of equity-settled ~ HEZLERAREER

share-based payments MR BEE 2 3 - - - 5,671 - 5,671
At 31 March 2013 and W_E-=F=f= +

at 1 April 2013 &ﬁé T-=EMmA- 448577 (39,998) 4473 15,445 (131,456) 297,041

Loss for the year ’EERE (152,201) (152,201)
Exchange difference arising on A5 £75 7 B H £5
translation of foreign

operations 1,643 1,643
Release of translation reserve  HEMB A AIE Bk

upon disposal of subsidiaries [ 5 (/& (6,852) (6,852)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE 2 E A

for the year (5,209) (152,201) (157,410)
Issue of ordinary shares under  EERNEERTERR

share placing ) 76,222
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BERNER AR EE

share-based payments MR BER 2R3 2,539 - 2,539
Share options lapsed BRI E (17,013) 17,013 =
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=A=+-H 524,799 (39,998) mn (266,644) 218,392
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HZ - —NF=HA=+—HILFE

32. RESERVES (continued)

32. f#fE @)

(b) The Company (b) Z&=AF
Share
Share options  Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RIVEE  BRERE RIHEE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAL FAT AL
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FMA—H 300,302 9,774 (156,318) 153,758
Loss for the year KEEEEB - - (4.171) @171 |
Total comprehensive income TEERENREE
for the year - - 4,171) @171
Issue of ordinary shares under BERMEEETERR
share placing 76,165 - - 76,165
Issue of ordinary shares for HUEM B AR TERR
acquisition of subsidiaries 72,110 - - 72,110
Recognition of equity-settled BRNER AR EE RARR
share-based payments BEW 2T - 5,671 - 5,671
At 31 March 2013 and e =
at 1 April 2013 ERZE-=FMA—-A 448577 15,445 (160,489) 303,533

Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares under
share placing

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments

Share options lapsed

AEEER
AEREANEER
RERHEERTERR
R ER ) AEE AR

RER 2
BRMERE

At 31 March 2014

R-B-ME=ZRA=1+-H

2,539
(17,013)

524,799 mn

126 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

(187,652)

(187,652)
(187,652) (187,652)
76,222

- 2,539
17,013 -

(331,128) 194,642

Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. #E#E)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REEMERAZRE

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately
following the distribution or dividend, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.

The special reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal value of
the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2002.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 4(g).

The share options reserve represents the fair
value of the number of unexercised share
options granted by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for equity-settled share-based payments in

REFSHSRRVEEER]) -
A2 @) AL DA RS A7 3 1B (R BUER
RS RE  EABST AR
BB R AR Z 153
BRAIEARR AR ERED KK
SR BIE  DARNEER
REEBEREPIHNES
T AR 2 IR AT RS,

REBE 2 BRI EEA QAR
WR-_ZETZ_FETRBEBE
) & 48 P U BB P B 1 B B 40 B
T B B2 7K 2 &) 54 MBS P 3 7T A
MRAEMERE I ZM °

BERERRRERINERY
BREREEZHABELZ5 -
LB TIRIEN TR 4(g) FrEl & 5t
R RRIE -

BREEEEARRMAEL
AITEBEE#RE 2 AFE -
WRIEFT FE A0 () Bh AR 22 7 A
BN AR & B 2 A R R
2 EETBURRER °

note 4(t)(i).
(d) Distributability of reserves (d) AItD kA
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the KATESRE R-E—NWE=A
Company's reserves available for distribution to =+—H ARFAHIIRTREZ
shareholders as at 31 March 2014 amount to 1 # 5193,671,0008 L (ZZE—=
approximately HK$193,671,000 (2013: F : 288,088,000 7T) °

HK$288,088,000).
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33. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS AND 33. ZBRWEHMEBARWBEERAERS

LIABILITIES THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARY

On 29 October 2013, the Company, entered into the
agreements with an independent third party to acquire
100% of equity interests in Gold Arch Group Limited
("Gold Arch”) at the total consideration of HK$62,000,000.
Gold Arch holds only exclusive licences on 5 patents
granted by the holders and has not yet commenced any
operations prior to the acquisition. The directors therefore
considered that Gold Arch did not meet the definition of a
business in HKFRS 3 (revised) at the acquisition date.
Accordingly, the acquisition had been accounted for as an
asset acquisition.

Details of acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 28 March 2013.

Details of the assets and liabilities acquired were as
follows:

RZE—=F+A=+NB XRAHSE
SN E= R e 0 AR (E 62,000,000
BrkESMEEFRAR(EM) 2
BAtEzm - afEFAREAREZATE
EHF| Z HRRR - B Uk i 2 TE AT S R 5
WMAEMER Bt EERA RIEAR
8 SN e e B BmEEREIGR
(IEF]) NEB2TE - Bt - WEEIE
BEAEEWEAR -

WBEEBRZHBARARABHAS-F
*EiEHZJr)\EZ NG

BEWBEEIBEFBOT

HK$°000
FHER
Intangible assets mILEE 13,341
Accrued charges and other payable 2B R R HEAENRE (13,341)
Net assets acquired DB EESE -
Total consideration satisfied by cash NIRES 2 BRE 62,000
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and RBBENBE AR ZIRE N
cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition  IH&ZEYR L FEIT -
of a subsidiary was as follows:
Purchase consideration settled in cash NIRSHEBERE 62,000
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReE KRB EEYREFE 62,000

At the date of completion of acquisition, the Company
carried out assessment for the carrying amounts of the
exclusive licences on the 5 patents and determined that
future economic benefit would be generated from the use
of 3 patents while the other 2 patents revealed no future
economic benefit. As a result, the exclusive licences on 3
patents were recognised as intangible assets and their
details are set out in note 17.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

For the year ended 31 March 2014

On 6 December 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests of Shenzhen Sheng Li Hui Bio-Technology
Limited ORI B 11 & £ W R A R A7) (“Sheng Li"), a
company incorporated in the PRC and engaged in the
provision of anti-aging and beauty services, at a total
consideration of RMB3,500,000 (equivalent to
HK$4,455,000). The acquisition was made with the aim to
utilise Sheng Li as a platform to extend the stem cells
technology business of the Group.

34. ¥%646t
BE-Z-—NE=ZA=+—HLEEE
RZE—=F+_-AXE NEEUER
B AR 3,500,000 7T (18E 72 4,455,000 /%8
70 ) Uk BE — A R B SR A SZ A SR A
TERERNRSE 2 ARG FYIEheEmE
RERAR(END 22l AEZ o I
BEEAARNIERAAREESMAB I
EB2FEE -

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

REEES  CWBEERNZAHERNEER

Sheng Li acquired as at the date of acquisition were as BEAFENT :
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount
before
business Fair value
combination adjustment Fair value
EL ARt
WEHRz
BREE NEERE A¥E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - WEKERE 755 103 858
Inventories FE 37 37
Trade and other receivables FERTBR R K
Eofh e kA 462 (37) 425
Cash and bank balance IRe NIRITH R 350 350
Trade and other payables FEER TR &
Eoh e FRIR (1,151) (147) (1,298)
453 (81) 372
Goodwill [EES 4,083
4,455
Satisfied by: ATB AR LA
Cash B 4,455
Total consideration transferred Frag R B4R 4,455
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WS IEE 4 7
e FEE -
Cash consideration paid EfRERE (4,455)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired B UEERS &
REFEY 350
(4,105)

F3R 2014
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34. ¥B50t#)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Sheng Li is
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the Group’s
medical beauty operation in the PRC and the anticipated
future operating synergies from the combination.

Sheng Li totally contributed approximately HK$550,000
and HK$1,806,000 to the Group's turnover and loss for the
year respectively for the period between the date of
acquisition and the end of the reporting period.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2013, the
Group's turnover for the year would have been
approximately HK$4,256,000, and loss for the year would
have been approximately HK$530,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of the turnover and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 April
2013, nor is intended to be projection of future results.

For the year ended 31 March 2013

On 18 September 2012 (the”Acquisition Date"), the Group
acquired 51% of the entire issued share capital of the
Target Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Target Group”) at a total consideration of
HK$184,000,000 (the “Acquisition”). The Target Group is
engaged in stem cell technology business. The Acquisition
provided good opportunity for the Group to diversify from
the existing business into a new line of business with
significant growth potential. Details of the consideration on
the Acquisition are as follows:

WEENELE  HEDEASERTEZ
BEXAXBRBANBARAHEEZ
AR EHBRERMES -

R H =R BRI - e
EARBEXRBRFEBEIANOA
550,000% 7T} 1,806,000 7T ©

WM BEERN T —=FMHA—HEMK
R EANF EE R4 /54,256,00078
T MARFEEE R 494 530,000 8T °
ZERMEEFHARE LA —ERRMHE
BEER _ZT—=FNUA—-—HTKAEE
CEREXBREERE T IHAER
REEZTEM -

BE-—Z-—=Ff=A=1+—HLHFE

R-F—-——FAAT+NB(TKEBH]) -
7R £ [H LA 48 X {8 184,000,000 % T W i B 15
RENEMBAR(GREIBREE]) 25
EBTRAESB1% ([HE]) - BREE
TeERABEMES - WESAEEWR
BEXBZTUCEREAGRAERENZ
MEBRBERH - WEZREFBOT -

HK$°000

FET

Cash He 30,000
Issue of shares (Note a) BT (Kt a) 84,187
Contingent consideration arrangement (Note b) st A(B = BE (Kfath) 69,813
184,000
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Company allotted and issued 300,666,667 Consideration Shares
at HK$0.28 per share, the fair value at the Acquisition Date, to Add
Talent Holdings Limited (“Add Talent”) credited as fully paid on 18
September 2012.

The contingent consideration requires the Company to allot and
issue consideration shares in an aggregate number of 249,333,333
shares upon satisfaction of the following conditions:

(i) The Company is required to allot and issue of 51,000,000
Consideration Shares to Add Talent credited as fully paid if
the 51% of the consolidated earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA") of the Target
Group is not less than HK$15,300,000 for the period from 1
October 2012 to 31 December 2013 (the “Guaranteed Period
A");

(ii) The Company is required to allot and issue of 85,000,000
Consideration Shares to Add Talent credited as fully paid if
the EBITDA of the Target Group is not less than
HK$25,500,000 for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014 (the “Guaranteed Period B");

(iii) The Company is required to allot and issue of 136,000,000
Consideration Shares to Add Talent credited as fully paid if
the EBITDA of the Target Group is not less than
HK$40,800,000 for the Guaranteed Period A or the actual
accumulative EBITDA achieved for the Guaranteed Period A
and the Guaranteed B is not less than HK$40,800,000; and

(iv) The Company is required to allot and issue of 113,333,333
Consideration Shares (as defined below) to Add Talent
credited as fully paid upon either:

(a) Dr. Lin Xiongbin (“Dr. Lin"), beneficially holds
approximately 41.16% of the issued share capital of
Add Talent, has obtained a patent granted by the
State Intellectual Property Office of the PRC and the
user right of stem cell technology granted by Dr. Lin
to the Target Group remaining fully effective; or

(b) the actual accumulative EBITDA achieved for the
Guaranteed Period A and the Guaranteed Period B is
not less than HK$25,500,000.

The Consideration Share was measured at HK$0.28, the
fair value at the Acquisition Date.

F3R 2014

34. £ E06t@w)

et

(a) AZE—ZFNATNR  ARFIRKEBRYZ
NP EER028BITMIEZIERAER AR (M1
2 1) Bl 3 & #17300,666,667 R ARRFIVERLE 2
KRB

(b) EEXLATM i - RARBERARRELE R
176 $£ 249,333,333 R AERRAS :

(i) WEREEANR-_E——F+A—BZE=
T-ZF+ A=+ AHBMRES
ADZBRE B - ITEFHEINEREF
8 ([EBITDA ) Z 51% 474 15,300,000
BT AR QB ARG SR R T
51,000 OOOHx)\HEEH‘E%I%Zﬁ Bl

(ii) HEEEER -_Z—NFEF—A—HE=
T-MFE+-A=Z+—AHB(RES
BJ) 2 EBITDA“ 2> 725,500,000 /% 7T -
AR RIZE RIS E R 8 &% %17 85,000,000
RABRSIVES R 2 R ERHD

(i) % EIZEERNRELAZ EBITDAT D
40,800,000 & T Sk NR 7 BAA IR FF A B
W o2 BB R GTEBITDAT & E’\
40,800,000 7T + BI ARG AR L ER
?éf&%éﬁ136,000,000HXAEE§\J1'E#%&E2
RERD &

(iv) REBEENTERER  AQRAMEER
%% 12 %17 113,333,333 W ARIIERHZ 2
RERG (EER T -

@  MEBREEHEL])

ﬁi%ﬁ SEEITRAL41. 16% E
BREERASERRRLZ

;i;ﬂmfﬁétr:ﬂ EEEERLY
SRR T E AR+ R
%

(b) PR BHARREBHBEBREK
2 25 EBITDA T 414 25,500,000
BTT

RERPEREEBRZ AFE028ETTA

=
= °
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34. £ 506t @)
Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately U BE AR AR AN 49 2,806,000 75 70 2 & Frig %
HK$2,806,000 have been excluded from the consideration RESHKR TERAFEZBEERA
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in B o

profit or loss for the year.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognized on the RUWBEHHKBCEERERZAE
Acquisition Date
HK$'000
FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - B R&E 16,243
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables %4 - FB/ 08 | H A fE U k0B 6,514
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTES 1,322
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A N E A FE T FRIE (6,600)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Amount due to a shareholder FERHIR R 2 5R08 (30,000)
Other payable E At R RIR (15,000)
(27,521)
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
The non-controlling interests (49% in the Target Group)
recognized at the Acquisition Date was measured by
reference to the proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net liabilities and amounted to
approximately HK$13,486,000.

34.

EX S=2E )

PUEE B ERER Z IE IR RS (B ZEE Y
49% KERR) #)/513,486,00078 7T © JHIRfE(L
WSR2 S aEFaAFEZ LD
TESBE -

Goodwill arising from acquisition WEEECEHE
HK$°000
FET
Consideration of acquisition Wz KB 184,000
Less: Non-controlling interest W SEYERRAE A (13,486)

Add: Fair value of net identifiable liabilities o FAEER R B EFE

assumed ZANFEE 27,521
198,035

Goodwill arose in the Acquisition because the Group
would benefit from the revenue growth and future market
development through stem cell technology and highly
skilled workforce owned by the Target Group.

Net cash flow on acquisition

WEEELRE HIARBESERRZ
BARKM RS RMER N HAEEZ
Wastg R RARRTSERAH -

WIREE 2R REFHE

HK$'000

FET

Consideration paid in cash PEIRENRE 30,000
Less: Cash and bank balance acquired o PTIEIR & RIRTTAE R (1,322)
28,678

F3R 2014
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34.

35.

36.

134 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)
Impact of the Acquisition on the results of the
Group

The Target Group contributed approximately HK$1,850,000
and loss of approximately HK$13,970,000 to the Group's
turnover and loss for the year respectively for the period
between the Acquisition Date and the end of the reporting
period.

If the Acquisition had been completed on 1 April 2012, the
total Group's turnover for the year would have been
unchanged due to the Target Group has no turnover and
the loss for the year would have been HK$31,601,000. The
pro-forma information is for illustrative purposes only and
is not necessarily an indication of the turnover and results
of the operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the Acquisition been completed on 1
April 2012, nor is intended to be a projection of future
results.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

On 18 September 2012, 300,666,667 shares of the
Company were issued to Add Talent’'s nominees to acquire
51% equity interest in the Target Company as part of the
total consideration.

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLE

As at 31 March 2013, the fair value of contingent
consideration was re-estimated based on an assumed
probability weighting in fulfilling the performance
requirements as set out in note 34 note (B) (i) to (iv). As a
result, the fair value of contingent consideration payable
was reduced by approximately HK$17,453,000.

As at 31 March 2014, the management of the Company
re-assessed the probability of fulfilling the performance
requirements. The management of the Company
determined that the Target Group was unable to achieve
the expected EBITDA under the Guaranteed Periods with
respect to performance requirements as set out in note 34
(B) (i) to (iii) and (iv) (b) and the remaining performance
requirement as set out in note 34 note (B) (iv) (a) would be
achieved within the next twelve months. As a result, the
fair value of contingent consideration payable was reduced
by approximately HK$21,193,000.

34.

35.

36.

EKa 0t am)
Uk B e A S 4 B

BZEENNEESREREHRIEEA
AEBZEBLAFEEFEEERY
1,850,000 /& 7T M [E518 47 13,970,000 8 7T ©

WKER T ——FmMA—B5%K - 8K
EERFAZBLEEBBESTE 1Y
MR B EEEWEFESELERE  MAFE
&5 18 BI| /& /5 31,601,00058 7T © s B E & H
EHHEE T FRRWRER =T —

FMA—HERAEEEENS & %ﬁ

RIGERE - TMEBFERAREEZEN -
FEFRERS

R-ZE——F L A+/\H ' 300,666,667 %
ARARIBRMHBEEITTFHREZARE A UK

ﬁ%ETﬁ/‘TZm%HxK%” AERER(E

Z—#B5

N RARRE

%:%*EﬁEHEJr*E : EWMH%Z
DB M EE34 T8 T MY FE (B)G) = (iv) AT 8%

ETT%EE%EEZTE““ “b'l_iii%ﬂé.ﬁr =

T RENEAREBZAFERL Y
17,453,00055’.3577: o

R-_E—NF=A=1+—H KAREE
EBEMFHBETRRARTZAEE - AR
REEERETRZ @E/ﬂﬂﬁﬁm (B)(i)
Z (i) B (vb) FTHETRIEE T ERRE
%ZE%EMWA i M FE34 78 T HIFE(B) (iv)
@8 TREITRRRERBN KRR =
BAAER Bt BRNRAREZAF
B4 %721,193,000 78 7T °

Annual Report 2014



79 o

®.

Notes to the Consolidated Financialv'Staﬁtements

E MR AR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

37. DISPOSAL OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
HELD FOR SALE
On 15 October 2013, the Group disposed of its entire
equity interest in two subsidiaries, namely Qinghai Fuli
Fenghuangshan Cemetery Company Limited and Taiyuan
City Wufuling Company Limited, at a total consideration of
HK$33,000,000. Details of disposal of subsidiaries are set
out in the Company’s circular dated 17 September 2013.
The state of affairs of these subsidiaries were classified as
assets and liabilities held for sale on 30 September 2013
and the details were set out in the interim results
announcement dated 13 November 2013. An analysis of
the financial effects arising on the disposal is as follows:

37.

HERFEHEEERAE

R-ZZE-—=FTHATHB XEBEUNER
{&33,000,000 7% 7T it & M fEl P B8 & 7] - Bl
FEBMNERLAZBBRNHBEREEAFR
KEMRBEBRMDARARZ 2 EBRARE
HoBHLENBARZFBHNRALA
BHA—Z—=N1A+TtRAZER X
EMBRARZEBRAR _—E—=F1A
“tTENEREERAE MAMFEH
RABMR-—T—=F+—A+=A2HH
RERD HEEEZMBREIHTMT ¢

Qinghai Fuli
Fenghuangshan Taiyuan City
Cemetery Woufuling
Company Company
Limited Limited Total
BEBEA
BEILAE ARTEER
BHERERDH REERAH wm
HK'$000 HK'$000 HK'$000
AL THL THL
Net assets disposed of: MECEESFE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERE 29,391 24,644 54,035
Available-for-sales investment AHHEERE - 947 947
Inventories FE 7,620 39,667 47,287
Trade and other receivables JEUBR 2 e LA R MR IE 26,802 69,627 96,429
Cash and bank balances Be Rk 2,112 121 2,233
Trade and other payables FERER R R A B 3R (49,172) (83,779) (132,951)
16,753 51,227 67,980
Non-controlling interest RS (8,041) (25,102) (33,143)
Release of translation reserve upon HEHTE 1 FIRE bR
disposal of subsidiaries ZIER G (2,760) (4,092) (6,852)
Gain on disposal HE 2 W 2,512 2,503 5,015
Total consideration, satisfied by: BRE UTHAAE
Cash Be 3,000
Promissory note B 30,000
Total consideration disposed HEZREBH 33,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELEZRERAFE
Cash consideration received clhzEERE 33,000
Cash and cash equivalent disposed HEZHSRESEEY (2,233)
30,767
£k 2014 ExcmragimEgaRan 135
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37. DISPOSAL OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
HELD FOR SALE (continued)
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year were engaged
in funeral and related business and had contributed
turnover of approximately HK$26,896,000 and loss of
approximately HK$52,121,000 to the Group up to the date
of disposal.

38. COMMITMENT
(i) Operating lease commitment
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitment payable under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

37. HERFHEEEREE@)

RAFEARALE ZHNB AR EREZE K
MK HzHEBHIE AXAEEEE
¥ 2 4996,896,00008 T & BB 4
52,121,000 7T °

38. AiE
(i) RERERE
RIS IR - AN ERIE T Al BUHE
SHERMEMEEMN 2 AEWT -

The Group The Company
¥iN | AT

2014 2013 2014 2013

b LUl T — = Ry T ——F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT FHET

Within one year —FA
In the second to fifth year, F_EEFERF
inclusive (BREEEME)

8,876 9,953

4,580 4,822

(if) Capital commitments

(i) BEBAEE
The Group The Company
biN | AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
TE-NE ekl — T [1F Eleaicd
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FExT FHET

Capital commitments forthe  UXEEWEE - B &
acquisition of property, Bz BEAAEYE
plant and equipment

12,710,000
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 39. EAREFFE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group and its employees are each required to make
monthly contributions at 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,250, whichever is the lower, to the scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF
Scheme is to make the required contributions under the
scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the total
contributions made by the Group to the retirement benefit
schemes and charged to the consolidated statement
amounted to HK$1,005,000 (2013: HK$952,000).

As at 31 March 2014, there were no forfeited contributions
available for the Group to offset contributions payable in
future years (2013: Nil).

F3R 2014

AEBRMBEBRBEERERZMAH T
REE([BES e - A8 2EET
HASEZEENRTA AFKRAX
AR ZEEZR  AEENEEEEE
R B M% & 25% 51,2508 7T (ABIE
ERE)AFTEELHER - AREREHS
BEFAAZEREERREAEBMNEE

R -

AEERPEARKNMBEMBAR ZEE
ThHE BT E 2 2 Bl 5K B IR R A8 BT
EloKB - WEMBARARTEZHE
Lo 1 1) 7% AR AR A8 Rl 5t SIS IA B Bh A& A
AEEREBERARBAFEZERRETE
BANRTTE R

HE-_Z-—NF=A=1t—HIFE X«
EERAERBANAEELNEHTIEG XL
1,005,000/ 7o ( — & — = F : 952,000/%
7T) - WEREFARERP IR °

RZE—MNFE=A=+—H AEELE

AR FERMNHERZERWHR (=
T—=F:8\)o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. BT A

The Group's major financial instruments include available- AEBZFEBHHETEABEAHEERE
for-sale investments, bank balances, trade and other RITAEER - BRI R H M B IR - 8
receivables, trade and other payables and bank borrowing. HBE N N ELAth FE AN IR IE A &fﬁfﬂ%% ° 52
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the EUBTAZHBREHERE - HizE
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial ﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁfﬁZﬂ 2 [ 4 ﬁ FE Kz E =
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these ZBZ REHNWT - BEIEEBE E@&Eﬁﬁ&%
risks are set out below. The management manages and e LARE (R BB 78 S B EGE = 3 5 o

monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) METEEHR

2014 2013
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET

Financial assets BgEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 2,509 929

Loan and receivables Bk A

— Trade and other receivables — YRS &EP{EJEWMIE 148,616 242,945
— Cash and bank balances — B RIRTTHH 47,718 29,157
Held-for-trading investments KIEEBERE 69,588 62,876
268,431 335,907

Financial liabilities BEE

Amortised cost BEHRR
— Bank borrowing —RITEE 35,910
— Trade and other payables — FERT IR R E fh B 5RIR 138,951
Contingent consideration payable TS ARE 52,360
227,221
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk

Foreign currency risk arises when future
commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the Group’s functional currency. The
foreign exchange risk of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group’s had business
activities denominated in foreign currencies.
The Group's business activities are primarily
exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of
Renminbi (“RMB") against Hong Kong Dollar.
The net assets/liabilities of certain investments
of the Group in the PRC are exposed to foreign
currency translation risk. The management
continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency risk should need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and monetary liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Renminbi AR

F3R 2014

40. BT A (&)
(b) THZEER

SMERBRAXBER S RE
BREEMRBENUNEEIE
SN ERETERESL - &
& H B E PAINEFHE 2 F 5
ORI o NEBEBTE
mEEARE(TARE]) HE
TERBZINERR - REBR
FEBOKRECEEAEF
MBAZIINERERR - B
SEERINERR - AR
BREREREHINERE

REI|E IR - NEEASNEGH
BcBEXEREEREBAE
FREIEZT

Assets Liabilities

E 8

2014 2013 2014 2013
b Lf: T —— o Bl — T ——

HK$°000 HK$'000 ELE0NN] HK$'000
BT FET FET FAT

42,853 152,226 6,929 142,462
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of
fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a
5% change in foreign currency exchange rates.
A positive number below indicates a decrease
in loss for the year where the functional
currencies of the Group strengthen 5% against
Renminbi. For a 5% weakening of the
functional currencies of the Group against the
Renminbi, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the loss, and the balances
below would be negative.

—E-mF

ARE

Renminbi

140 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

40. BT A (4)
(b) THER (&)

SNEE B RS E AT
AEETEME ARBRIES
Rz TRHANAEEY
RARINE G HEIER G AR
FEREES% 2 BEE 5%
BRFEFEEIE A8 RNILERI
BEBREMTASREL R K
%aﬁFHETT EHIRZA
BEB TR - BURE D
a%ﬁ%aﬁZ%%ﬁﬁf%
BH - I&WMETZB% ‘‘‘‘‘
RELEBAEEHBRE - LT
FEBREAEB 2 NEEER
HARETFESY @ BIAREEE
BeRL  WALSENEE
%EAE%%@B%’Wﬁ%E
ARSEMMARZEE  LUWTE
BINERAEH -

Effect on loss of the
year end and
accumulated losses
HELABER
EtERzEE

2014

Effect on equity

HRAzE®

—E-mF
HK$'000

HK$'000
TRR

1,796 488
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

F3R 2014

Market risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances. The management
considers the Group's exposure of bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant
as they have short maturity period.

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
variable-rate bank balances at the end of the
reporting period was the amount outstanding
for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis point higher/
lower and all other variable were held constant,
the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March
2014 would decrease/increase by HK$186,000
(decrease/increase by 2013: HK$80,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group's exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk on its variable-
rate bank balance.

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in equity securities
classified as available-for-sale investments and
held-for-trading investments. The Group’s price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity securities
listed in Hong Kong. The management monitors
the price risk and will take appropriate actions
when necessary.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity
price risk at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2014, if the quoted market
price of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
classified as held-for-trading investments had
been increased/decreased by 5% and all other
variables held constant, the Group's post-tax
loss for the year would have decreased/
increased by HK$3,479,000 as a result of
change in fair value of held-for-trading
investments. (2013: HK$3,144,000).

40. BT A (&)

(b)

g Rk ()

K%iﬁimb%%”?ﬂ R EE
MIETEBREHR  EEERA
ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%?ﬁZﬂ%
G RERAEBAEHRY
A BRI R B -

3 2 B R DT

A TERESMIRER RS
H K T8 2 1) 2 2 B 1 A 2 o
ZOMBERBEHRFE
RITERBEFAREEESR
A% ©

i & M= _EF+ T 50 & Z 26
mMATE EfEEmIF e K
EEHE—_T-NFZA=+—
HIEFEZ BB,
186,000 8 L (& —=%F :
/12 080,00087T) - FEMR
RAEBETZE fﬁﬁ A
%fﬁimugﬂrﬂ

AEERE SRR HBER
ERFHEEERE ZIRAE

A RAERER - N REE
BEBRERERRES LMK
AES BEEERERRR
Y HREFRHRIEZTE -

BRA (BT S B 2T
AT ERE DM TIRIERE
RATAS A BRER MRS

WZZBE—-—NE=A=+—8"
h&%ﬁﬁzz&éﬂﬁmé
ErmRAZBSFTR™EE
bw%W%%ﬁ%ﬁE@m%ﬁ
BAE KEBFERBREBE
BRI IEEE 2 REANFE
’Eﬁmﬁd//ﬁbum3479mm
BT (ZZ—=4F : 3,144,000/%5
JC) ©

EBESRERTEEERAT 141



1."

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2014 E = —NF=A=+—HIFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

142 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties, is the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's exposure to credit risk on trade and
other receivables is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather
than industry in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group had concentration of
credit risk as over 83% (2013: over 86%) of the total
trade receivables was due from 5 (2013: 1) largest
customers which had no history of default. The
Group has policies and place for the control and
monitoring of such credit risk.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because all
the Group’s bank deposits are deposited placed with
major banks in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources in meeting its financial obligations.

40. M T A (&)

(c)

(d)

=ERR
AR 5 FRE Eﬁ IS AEE
SEMBBRAZEREERRIIKE

o) Wﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%
BEZEMEE -

SRIE WA A e b EMGRIBE S > A
SEFEHCEERREIZZERP
ZERF e (MIESER EEMETT
X)mFE AhEERRAKESS
ZEREBERANEEERF P&
BEREEREL -RMEHPKR AL

BAXEESETRAR REAREYKD
2(ZFE—=F: —R)UEBHERER

R EERFE ZRIEEERIRR AT
HBiB83% (=T —=14: iL%%M
AEEB M EERREITRER

nBELEERRER - REANK
SEMBRTHEROERREART
BlEERTT -

EE S
EERBECERE  AEBERN
RRELRREFEVEFTNEEER

RIARIKE  URAEEEEREE
@&5@21&£ﬁimb§/&§bzﬁﬁﬁ o BEIR
ErTHEMEFZEESNRR - BRA
BRI ERENEMBELE -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. BT A (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) "RBELEMKE (&
The table below analysis the Group's and the T%%ﬁﬁmﬁi’i@&ﬂiﬂaﬁdﬁﬂa%ﬁ%
Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity BIRZ=AAEEA I 2 TR HiR 1248
groupings based on the remaining period at the end = HWEE‘J%J“ZEMWE\E%\W o 1E
of each reporting period to the contractual maturity TANPBEZEBASHNRIIBE SR
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the g o NEKBEMREAGHRGRE -

contractual undiscounted cash flows. The tables
include both interest and principal cash flows.

The Group NE
Total
On demand Total carrying
or less than 3 months More than undiscounted amount at
3 months to 1 year 1year cash flows 31.3.2014
R=2-R0F
REXD ZfRZE A¥E =H=t-H
HR=MA - BB-F ReRESy EEAE
2014 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—g-ms TER TR TER T TR
Bank borrowing FITEE
Trade and other payables ERER LR
Total &3t
Total
On demand Total carrying
or less than 3 months More than  undiscounted amount at
3 months to 1 year 1 year cash flows 31 320 3
E/\— < —
BRESH “HAE AR :ﬂir =
SR={EA - BE-F BenEsi  ERSE
2013 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—F-= T T T T T
Bank borrowing RIEE - 38,535 - 38,535 35,910
Trade and other payables ENETREENTE 138,951 - - 138,951 138,951
Total b 138,951 38,535 - 177,486 174,861
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(e)

144 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

° The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and
ask prices respectively; and

° The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3
based on degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

40. BT A (&)

(e)

BB ITAZRNFE
MBEEMYBREZAFER T
HEFETFE

o AREGRRRGFALLEED
LEBECHHEERMBAE
ZRFETDH2ERBRTS
BEABRELEEE &

e HMHMBEERMBABZA
FE DEAREEBRNAE
EMREAMERSER &
TRRRREREDNERE

EERR NUBRRERMHE
ErFBAEFEEREQFEN
% o

TRIEBHOT R AT EERETEZ
MBTEDN  RBAFEBREMRF
BEANR—E=MA:

F—HAFEAENEBHEREESE
BERERBMSAMOCRAE) BRE
$

FE_RATEAEDNREE-—AAE
TRIRELASL - AT B (AVMERR) s
(AMEERITE) AEEXRBEBRSEM
BRABESL &

F=FRNFEAETREFTALIER
BRABEMSRECEELARRA
B(EZBR 2B AE) 2HERNE
$o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. BT A &)

(e) Fair value of financial instruments (continued) (e) MBIEZATVE(E)
The Group and the Company
AEEREAAT
2014 2013
“E-mE —E-=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
-8 et =R F— F_R E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THET THET THET
Equity securities listed ~ AE/E L2
in Hong Kong, at PR AN 5
fair value BATE
Held-for-trading BEEERE
investments 62,876 - -
Contingent consideration [E{ i A (E
payable 31,167 - - 52,360

The fair value of held-for-trading investments was

FEEERE 2 AFENAERTS

based on quoted bid prices in an active market. FTERE NBAHKIE -
Details of the valuation of the fair value of contingent EASAREBERAFEZAEFBERH
consideration payable were disclosed in note 36. FF36HEE o

There were no transfers between Levels 1 and 2 in
both years.

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to provide an adequate
return to shareholders.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies and process during the
years end 31 March 2014 and 2013.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio,
which is calculated as total liabilities over total assets. The
Group’s strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at a
satisfactory level. The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2014
was 21% (2013: 33%).

F3R 2014

MRWEFE  F—REE_HZ2EL
E|EEE -

41. EXREE

AEEEREA AR RAREAEEEE
BIFBEELE 7N URKRRERE
¥R Mo A A ) 25 AR R A 2R 5 A B A
REKEHmE -

REERBLEINN KRR E E 2 Rk
BEERHAEREARRE - SEFAHEER
AR NEBEAERBN TREZK
BER  RRRRCER - FTHRMOKL
HEBENRLER -BE_T—MFK
—E-ZF-ZA=1T-HLFE AEH
BT - MR MR ELES -

REFRBEABH R (RBPEBEHRIARE
ERTE) BREETEN o REM 2 KIS A%
BEEBBHERNMEZKE - R-Z
—ME=A=+—RzEEABLXA
21% (ZB—=% :33%) °
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42.
Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

BRBALRS
$QEEHW§QﬁKH%$ 5.2 4 R
PN ET Y ET NN

i e ﬂKWﬁﬁﬁo

FTEEBEABZHE
FRN - EFREMFTEERBABZMEN
T

2014 2013
Lkl — =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
Tx THT

Short-term benefits SECEER]
Post-employment benefits BEBR 2 1R

3,866 2,501
15 17

3,881 2,518

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key
management is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43.
SUBSIDIARIES
a. Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

NEMEBERAS ZME TS5 H MW
2 ERMERAB ZRARMTSBEE

T N
il o 4t
o IHE>

IEMBATFE
a. R-E-ME&=A=+—0 KA
ZEBHBARFBEMT

Proportion of nominal

Place of Issue and paid up value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of capital/registered registered capital held Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
BRITR KARAMHERTRE
AEER RMARY e EEERKR BRRE/EREE  EMRAEAEEIL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE &
Royal Kit Trading Limited Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
HBESHERAT B company LEA%10,0008 7T REER
BREMEAF
FINTERERE S The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Sales of cotton yarn and
BRAF of China company AR 50,000,000 metals
hEARAME BREEATF HERYROR
1 46 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2014
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EH BN EFHE @)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of nominal

Place of Issue and paid up value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of capital/registered registered capital held Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
ERTR KARFBCRITRE
ARER DAL EEHY  EEEBEEA BRERA/EREE SRRAEEEIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HiE A
Life Sciences and Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Technologies Group &/ company L@ BT REER
Limited BREAAT
EGREREER
BRAE
LST Operating Limited ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Distribution of
A% company L@E1BTT biomedical and life
BREMLA sciences products
DWENBER
EaR2ER
Gold Arch Group Limited  British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability Ordinary US$1 100% - Investment holding
SMEBERAR RBRIES company TER1ET REER
BREELTA
159 Regenerative British Virgin Islands ~ Limited liability Ordinary US$100 51% - Investment holding
Medicine Group RERUEE/ company LBER100ET BEER
(H.K.) Limited Hong Kong BREFEAF
159BAREEE (BE) BE
BRAA
159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Storage and processing
Cell LifeBank (HK) &% company LEER1ET of stem cells
Limited AREEATA BT RNT
B 159 BEBHEM
BEREERAF
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. TENBRAIFE @)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Proportion of nominal

Place of Issue and paid up value of issued capital/
Name of incorporation/ Form of capital/registered registered capital held Principal
Company operation legal entity capital by the Company activities
ERTR KARFBCRIRE/
ARER TEMEY EE0Y EEEEFR BREA/EREE SRRAEEEIN TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi Bk
159 Anti-Aging Center ~ Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 51%  Stem cell anti-aging
(H.K) Limited B company LER1ET application related
BB 1B9MTERL BREFAF services
BRAF BAMAEERAR
HEERRS
Asia Honest Finance Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 100% - Money lending business
Limited &% company LBR1BTT WEER
BFHBERAR BREERT
Life Length International Hong Kong Limited liability Ordinary HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Health Club Limited ~ &i& company LER1BT REER
EnREERER BREEATF
BEBERAR
FaRERECEI) The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Trading business
BRRAA of China company AR 50,000,000 EUES
PEARLNE BREMEAT
RNENEENRE The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and
BRATF of China company AR 3,000,000 beauty service
PEARLAE BREEAF nEEREBRS
FImAEGRERFEERE The People's Republic  Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100%  Anti-aging and
BRAF of China company AR 500,000 beauty service
hEARAME BREEATF NEERERRE
EREEBRERE The People’s Republic  Limited liability RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Hotel investment and
BRRE of China company AR 1,000,000 management
REARLAE BREMFAT BERERER

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

148 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EM B A AFE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
b.  The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned b. TRENBEEEAIETERER 2 AE
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non- B2 EWNB AR ZFEE °

controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

interest Profit/(loss)
held by allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interest interest interests
FERER RS AEREFERER
Principal place of  Principal place of e LA 2Rl (E18) RitRERER
Name of subsidiary incorporation business 2013 2014 2014 2013
DRER TEAMRIBE FEEERR —E-=F il T =5 Eblgub — T =
HK$'000 ' HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT BT FHT BT
159 Regenerative British Virgin Hong Kong (2,838) (6,891) (9,729) (6,891)
Medicine Group Islands B
(H.K.)Limited RERAHE
169 B4R g%@
(BE)BRR
159 Anti-Aging Center Hong Kong Hong Kong (2,346) (11,416) (13,762) (11,416)
(H.K.) Limited 5 B
BB 19MEEZF O
BRAAE
159 Autologous Stem Hong Kong Hong Kong (2,139) (1,655) (3,794) (1,655)
Cell LifeBank (HK)  && )
Limited
B 159 B8RS Lﬂlﬁf#
FHREERA
Individually immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (2,264) (368)

BAFEHIBRRED  BAREEEHNBAR

(20,330)
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Summarized financial information in respect of each of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interest is set out below. The summarized financial
information below represents amounts before intra-group
eliminations.

2014

Current assets MENEE

Non-current assets FERBEE

Current liabilities REIAE

Non-current liabilities ERBEE

Equity attributable to owners RATHRE AEERER
of the Company

Non-controlling interest FEPERR R =

Revenue Wz

Expenses Fx

Loss for the year KEZEIE

Loss attributable to owners KRAREE AEILEE

of the Company
Loss attributable to the
non-controlling interests

TR R PR (A B 1R

Loss for the year RNFEE51E
Other comprehensive income ANEHEB A
attributable to owners of Efh 2wl

the Company

Other comprehensive income
attributable to the
non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income
for the year

150 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

43. T EMEB R AFE @)

BEEAGFEBRER 2 AKESHE A A
ZEHBERBINNT - A THEERME
REBERNEIHERZ FOA

=t LT

159
Autologous
Stem Cell
LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited
EHB15988
SR E
BRAF
HK$'000
THET

159
Regenerative
Medicine
Group (H.K.)
Limited

159 A BE
£E(F8)
BRAR
HK$'000
THET

159
Anti-Aging
Center (H.K.)
Limited
%159
REEHL
BIRA R
HK$'000
THET

102 44,440 556
- 5,637 5,863
(19,957) (78,163) (14,163)

(10,126)
(9,729)

(14,324)
(13,762)

(3,949)
(3,794)

- 10,046 -
5,792 11,633 4,366
(5,792) (4,787) (4,366)

(2,954) (2,441) (2,227)

(2,838) (2,346) (2,139)

(5,792) (4,787) (4,366)
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMBARFE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2014 (continued) —E-UFE(HF)
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K.) Center (H.K.) LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
159 BAEE %159 EHB159 08
S8 (F#) REEHRL  EOBRARE
BRAE BRAF BRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET THET
Total comprehensive income RNAEER AEG
attributable to owners of 2HEK=BE
the Company (2,954) (2,441) (2,227)
Total comprehensive income IR RS
attributable to the FHENR =B
non-controlling interests (2,838) (2,346) (2,139)
Total comprehensive income AEE2ENEBE
for the year (5,792) (4,787) (4,366)

Dividends paid to non-controlling - FIEiERAER 7 % B

interests = - =
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEKLEEK2ES

operating activities AR F 58 (5,542) 3,764 (2,506)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEREEZSH RS

investing activities WA O F8 (73) (65)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from PEE T e

financing activities A O ) F88 (1,501) 2,571
Net cash inflow (outflow) BERACRL) R 2,190 -
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2013 —=F—=
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K)) Center (H.K.)  LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
159 B4 EE & #1569 HH150 5488
SE(HH) MEEFRL SR E
ERAH BRAF BRAR]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FET FET
Current assets MENEE 267 31,171 693
Non-current assets IEREBEE - 7,313 7,539
Current liabilities REIAE (14,330) (61,783) (11,610)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - -
Equity attributable to owners RARER AEGER
of the Company
Non-controlling interest FEIRR A
Revenue e - 1,850 -
Expenses Bz 14,063 24,393 3,378
Loss for the year RFEE51E (14,063) (23,299) (3,378)
Loss attributable to owners KRARER ABIGEE
of the Company (7,172) (11,883) (1,723)
Loss attributable to the IR S PR (R B8
non-controlling interests (6,891) (11,416) (1,655)
Loss for the year RNFEE1E (14,063) (23,299) (3,378)
Other comprehensive income ANEHER A
attributable to owners of Efh 2wl

the Company

Other comprehensive income
attributable to the
non-controlling interests

TR R E A
ENEE 6

Other comprehensive income
for the year

E\

AFEEEA 2 EU S
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43. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 43. T EMBARFE (&)
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
2013 (continued) —E-=5(#F)
159 159
Regenerative 159 Autologous
Medicine Anti-Aging Stem Cell
Group (H.K) Center (H.K.)  LifeBank (H.K.)
Limited Limited Limited
159 A B &% 159 HH 15088
SEH(ES) MEEFH D SIS ARRE
BRAF BT BRAT]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FExT FET
Total comprehensive income RNRAREEB AL
attributable to owners of 2HEK=BE
the Company (7,172 (11,883) (1,723)
Total comprehensive income FEEBRAE S R
attributable to the FHE =B
non-controlling interests (6,891) (11,416) (1,655)
Total comprehensive income ANEEPHEWZ LT
for the year (14,063) (23,299) (3,378)

Dividends paid to non-controlling i F e AR RS 2 IR B

interests - = -
Net cash inflow (outflow) from REKLEERZRE

operating activities WA O 58 (13,944) (51,046) (2,896)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEREEZSH RS

investing activities A CRL) F8 - (9,974) (8,667)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from PEE T e

financing activities A O ) F88 13,944 61,224 11,563
Net cash inflow (outflow) BERACRL) R - 204 -
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44,

45.

46.

154 HONG KONG LIFE SCIENCES AND TECHNOLOGIES GROUP LIMITED

LITIGATION

On 14 March 2014, LST Operating Limited as the
defendant and as the tenant, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, received an amended writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Based on the statement of claims,
the plaintiff as the landlord claimed against the defendant
for the outstanding rent, service charges, rates, interest,
costs and damages to be assessed. The defendant has
filed a defence on 23 May 2014 which denied certain
claims made by the plaintiff. Up to the date of this report,
the vacant possession of the suit premises was delivered
to the landlord and the parties are still in the settlement
negotiations in order to resolve the disputes. The Directors
assessed that the litigation would have no material impact
to the financial position of the Company and the liability to
the Company is remote.

MATERIAL EVENT AFTER REPORTING
PERIOD

On 4 April 2014, Wuyuan County Wuli Tianxi Hotel
Company Limited (“Wuli Tianxi"”) entered into (i) the lease
agreement with Wuyuan County Yuhe Property
Development Company Limited (“Yuhe"”) pursuant to
which Wuli Tianxi agreed to lease the property from Yuhe
upon the terms and conditions set out in the lease
agreement. The property is located in Jiangxi Province,
PRC consisting of a hotel building and 10 blocks of terrace
villas; and (ii) the management agreement with Shenzhen
Ruiyue Hotel Management Company Limited (“Ruiyue”),
pursuant to which Ruiyue agreed to provide hotel
management service to Wuli Tianxi upon the terms and
conditions set out in the management agreement. Wauli
Tianxi employed Ruiyue as the sole manager in charge of
managing the hotel during the effective period of the
management agreement. Up to the date of this report,
Wouli Tianxi has not commenced business operation.
Details of the lease agreement and management
agreement were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 4 April 2014.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of directors
on 25 June 2014.

44.

45.

46.

i
RZE—NOF=ZA+TWMNHE ARAHES:
& HtE A T LST Operating Limited ({E/& %
EREAARP)BERTERNTREREE
B2 ISR RSk o IRIBER R E -
REWEAEFT) ABERENAEE R
© - BRIGE - - FE - BRARBFTE
2L -WEON -_E—NFEFRA-+=
HERX—HGRHE BBRESREREZ
ATHR - HEAREHE  HRHFA

MECHEIRE  MEFNEETHAR
KA NERDIZ - BEERE - FaafT ey

AR ZMBRAEREATE - MHA
RAEEZAENFERX -
BEMBZEASHE
R-T-—MENAME  ZREEEXE

BEERAR(EEXRE]) () BEREH
MEXERAB(HMMDIIZESESR
Bl ZEXRBRERNHKMEEZFE -
HEGER L GEEREEAR - ZFEN
RAPBLTIRE - f—@EEKXE R 10EE
BERIZEARAX ¢ R (i) SR Y B B /5 & IR
BRAR(MWIE DI EEAR - #EIt -
WM R MERRERMEEE RS -
HEGRARGEHEREEAR - ZEXE
BRRRAE—EEL REEARAM
HEANERZBEE #HEAREAH &
BRERAARAEBLEE HEARNME
BEARZHABRARAARAS T —MF
MAMEZ AR -

HEAERRE
ARAEFER _FT-—WFA=-FTHH
B R TR A M ISR

Annual Report 2014



Five-Year Financial Summary
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZ —Z&

—ME=A=+—HILFE

The summarised consolidated results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
audited financial statements of the Group, were set out below:

o -

AN

AEBERETEMBFEEZEZE

9”«.‘
Iy

~

EENA

& (M A REEEZM BRI BMINDT

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLEE

2010 2011 2012 2013
“ETF T —F ZT-ZF T =F
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FAT FAT FAL FAT
RESULTS ¥E
Turnover L 74,505 79,733 71,727 86,113
Loss before tax BB A ES 18 (48,140) (9,879) (31,267) (41,949)
Income tax FriSHt (1,537) (81) (758) (1,177)
Loss for the year RFEE/BE (49,677) (9,960) (32,025) (43,126)
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company RNAREER A (39,769) (8,930) (28,448) (35,614)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R M A (9,908) (1,030) (3,577) (7,512)

F3R 2014

2014

—2-F

HK$'000
FERT

706,787

(184,375)
(583)

(184,958)

(152,201)
(32,757)
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As at 31 March

R=A=+—-H
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
ZETF T —F ZT--F ZT--F Eglils
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 LRI
AT AT T TAT TE&RT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Total assets BEMARE 357,182 419,983 433,215 691,219 441,760
Total liabilities BERE (92,254)  (112,653)  (106,317)  (227,221) (94,904)

Net assets EEFH 264,928 307,330 326,898 463,998 346,856

Non-controlling interests TR = 83,718 77,607 57,434 35,279 (29,549)
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